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Independent auditors report
To the members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited

1. Report on the audit of standalone Ind AS financial statements

We were engaged to audit the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of D. S. Kulkami
Developers Limited (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2018, the statement of
profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Management’s responsibility for the standalone Ind AS financial statements

D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code (the Code). Its affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Resolution
Professional appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai vide its Order dated 26th September 2019 under the
provisions of the Code as Interim Resolution Professional and subsequently as per section 22 of the Code as
Resolution Professional of D. $. Kulkarni Developers Limited. The matter against the Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process is pending for admission before the Hon'ble NCLT vide CP 1633/2019. Under
provisions of section 17 of the Code, the powers of Board of Directors of D. 8. Kulkarni Developers Limited
are currently under suspension and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional of D. 5.

Kulkarni Developers Limited.

In view of ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Resolution Professional is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) with respect to the preparation of
these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give 2 true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial

statemnents that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due¢ to fraud or

CITOlr.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liguidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic Alternative but to do so. Under section 20 of Code, it is incumbent upon
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Resolution Professional to manage the operations of the Company as a going concern and the financial
statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

The written representations with regard to these financial statements provided to us during the course of our
audit, have been signed by the Resolution Professional appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai vide its
Oxrder dated 26" September, 2019.

3. Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder.

The Financial Statements provided to us for review have been signed only by the RP. Section 134(1) of the
Companies Act,2013 requires such signature to be undertaken by (ajthe chairperson of the company where he
is authorized by the board, or by two directors out of which one shall be managing director; and (b) the chief
executive officer, the Chief Financial officer and the. Company Secretary, wherever they are appointed. Since
the CIRP has been initiated, the RP, pursuant to his appointment, has been vested with the management of
the Company and the powers of the board of directors of the Company stand suspended. Therefore, the
Financial

Statements have been signed by the RP alone. Though the powers of the Board of directors are Suspended,
none of such directors of the Company were available/ agreeable to sign the said Financial Statements.

The positions of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company, as on the date of Signing
of the Financial Statements, were vacant. We understand that the office of the Chief Finance Officer and the
Company Secretary of the Company is vacant before the stact of the year under audit. The Company has not
appointed such key managerial personnel as required under section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointments and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014. As such,
the Financial Statements may suffer from issues of accuracy, veracity, sufficiency, completeness and reliability,
as none of the key managerial personnel of the Company other than RP has signed the Financial Statements.

For the purpose of this audit review, we have relied upon the Financial Statements provided to us by the RP.
It is observed that the RP has inserted a note as part of notes to accounts, set out in Note 2.32 of financial
statements, as pet which he has assumed that the data/information provided by the officials of the Company
and the records of the Company made available to him are in conformity with the applicable laws and present
a true and fair view of the position of the Company and has not personally verified such information; and that
he should be absolved from the accuracy, veracity and sufficiency or completeness of information provided
to him by the officials of the Company based on which the Financial Statements of the Company have been
prepared. As per the said note, the RP has signed the financial statements only to facilitate the CIRP process
without any liability of the same. To the extent to which the RP has disclaimed his liability with respect to
accuracy, veracity, and sufficiency or completeness of information provided to him by the officials of the
Company, the Financial Statements may suffer from issues of accuracy, veracity, sufficiency, completeness or
reliability. Relevant observations upon the extent of veracity of the Financial Statements have been made in

the below paragraphs.
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Our objectives are;

a. to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 4 whole are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error

b. to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 1n accordance
with the SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of the audit in accordance with SAs, we exercised professional judgment and maintained professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a  identfied and assessed the rsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulung from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

b. obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropmate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in plakhe and the operating effectiveness of such controls

¢ evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d. considered the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, we concluded that a material uncertainty does exist related to
events ot conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Hence, we drew attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, futuse events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going
CONCern o vice versa.

e. evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

f. communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identified during our audit.

Because of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the financial statements.
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4. Basis for disclaimer of opinion

®

(1)

(1)

(1)

™)

(vi)

In view of irregularities and suspected fraudulent transactions and defaults under ‘Insolvency
Bankruptey Code 2016’, the Company is under ‘Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process’. As at the
date of this report, we are not in receipt of any liigation/investigation reports conducted by
mvestigatuve authorndes,

In view of the fact that matters relating to abovementioned financial irregularities are sub-judice and
linigations/investigations by respective authorities are yet to be completed, we are unable comment on
the consequenual impact, if any, on the financial statements of the outcome of such
lingations/investigations / enquiry by law enforcement agencies and outcome of related litigation and
claims.

In view of the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the outcome of which cannot be
presently ascertained on the matters listed below, we are unable to comment whether the Company
will be able to continue as a going concern. Consequently, we are unable to comment as to whether
the going concern basis for preparation of these financial statements taken by the Company is
appropuiate.

There are proceedings going on against the company under various laws such as The Maharashtra
Protection of Interest of Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) — Pune,
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and other economic laws. Various agencies have moved
against the Assessee Company and its directors, viz. Directorate of Enforcement (ED), Serious Fraud
Investigation Office (SFIO) and other agencies. The original documents/agreements has been seized
by ED and are not available for earrying out necessary audit.

Other mattess [including those listed in paragraph 4(iv) above], limitations with regard to availability
of necessary audit evidences including original documents and information, satisfactory explanations
and justifications required for audit for the years ended 31 March 2018. In view of the limitations and
uncertainties involved, we had expressed our inability to express an opinion on the financial
statements for the audited period. Our disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements is also
because of the possible effects of the above matters on the figures for the current year and on the
corresponding figures for the year ended 31 March 2017 and balances as at 1 April 2016 (including
the adjustments required, if any on transition to Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act), which also affects their comparability with current year figures.

We are unable to comment on the necessary adjustments / disclosures in these financial statements in

relation to the following items, in view of non-availability of certain necessary information /

documentation / satisfactory explanations relevant to the current year audit -

(a) Lack of reconciliation of consumables and spares consumed (included under purchases of stock in
trade) with related sales; and

(b) Sale of few fimished flats but not recognized due to non-availability of agreements for which the
closing stock shall show and inflated cost value;

Continuation Sheel.............
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(c) Lease rental agreements for various land given on lease on which rental expenses are recognized
for the current year, are not provided and hence without sufficient appropoate audit evidence we
are unable to comment on accuracy of rental expenses so recognized;

{(d) Employee details / Salary register on which salary expenses are recognized for the current vear,
are not provided and hence without sufficient approprate audit evidence we are unable 1o
comment on accuracy of employee cost so recognized;

(¢) Bank statement/Interest statements of few Banks accounts/Fixed deposits taken from the banks,
based on which recognition have been made, were not made available by the banking authorites
inspite of many representations;

(£ Debenture statements and Loan statements from few banks based on which interest expenses
have been recognized were not made available, for which we have taken the base of previous year
in case of Non-Convertible debentures,

() Statutory liabilities due as ar 31™ Mar" 2018 are verified based on the tally data mainmined and
provided by the management. Various representations to Government authonties for the login
credentials or data available of the said company, have been made based on which the said
recognition shall be verified for its accuracy but the same was not available;

(h) Ledger confirmations from vanous parties including related parties had not been made available
based on which inter balances shall be verified;

(i) Original documents / agreements were not made available in most cases and hence we had o
carry out our audit procedures on the tally data provided and management representations. As
explained to us by the management, all the original documents had been seized by Directorate of
Enforcement (ED).

(i) Report from EOW for its investigation done and report of forensic audit conducted have not
been provided to us based on which our opinion shall have a marterial impact.

{vil)y  Attention is drawn to Note 9 of the financial statements Le. unsecured loans to related parties where
provision has been made for bad and doubtful debts of Rs. 4,173.84 Lakhs, out of Rs. 6,576 Lakhs
which are loans given to subsidiary company, M/s. DSK Developers Corporation. Out of total
4,173.84 lakhs, Rs. 229 Lakhs is doubtful Interest component. The basis of the provision of doubtful
debts is not provided to us.

(vit)  As part of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Company has recerved certain claims
aggregating to Rs. 2,79,561 lakhs tll 27" March 2020 from certain vendors and customers. As
informed to us by the management, the Company has terminated most of the contracts with the said
customers / vendors,

{ix)  Attention is invited to note 11 of the financial statements wherein it is stated that Inventory is not
physically verified. We have relied on management for the figures provided in respect of inventory.
Current year changes in Work in Progress are not supported by any evidences except the data entered
by the management. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the impact of the above on the
financial statements.

(x)  Trade receivables include receivables of Rs. 83 lakhs in respect of related party (Nikhil Kulkarni &
Co.) tor the purpose of sale of assets which is outstanding since March 2016. It also includes Vat
recetvable from Flat holders of Rs. 219 Lakhs since long which is not backed by any evidences.
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(xij  Attention is invited to note 8 of financial statements whercin Long-term investment I equity

(ses)

(iv)

(xv)

(3ev1)

instruments of subsidiaries amounts to Rs. 200 lakhs. The total amount of investment in subsidiacy
companies amounting to Rs. 1909.73 lakhs has been provided for diminution of investments in
previous years itself which has not been backed by the explanation and hence, we are unable to
comment on the completeness, existence and accuracy of this amount.

The Company needs to strengthen its internal control systems, in particular its IT controls and those
relaing to existence of contract work-in-progress; reconciliation of consumables and spares
consumed with related sales; accounts receivables including periodic reconciliations with customers,
age wise analysis and application of receipts from customers; physical venfication of inventories;
accounts payables including vendor selection process and periodic reconciliations with vendors;
classification of costs relating to items of purchase of traded goods including costs incurred towards
warranty and certain contract expenses; and disposal of property, plant and equipment. We are unable
to determine consequential impact, if any, of these aforesaid weaknesses on these financial statements.

Attention is drawn to the Note 14 of the Financial Statements wherein the advances made to the
relatives and third parties are doubtful in nature. The same has been recorded based on the
accounting and books maintained by the management.

Attention is invited to Note 17 of financial statements wherein various Project Loans, Corporate
Loans, Vehicle Loans and other loans have been verified by the statements as much were provided to
us by the management. Since the statements for Debentures loans were not available or provided to
us, the amount outstanding has been derived by recording the similar amount of accrued interest
expense as that of previous year.

As per the provisions of Sec 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, post the ransfer of dividend declared
to an unpaid dividend accoun, if still remains unpaid for 2 period of 7 years from the date of such
transfer shall then be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund and the company shall
send a statement of the details of such transfer to the authority which administers the said Fund.
Atrention is invited to Note 23 of financial statement wherein the unclaimed dividend outstanding in
the books of company comprises from the FY 2009-10 till FY 2014-15.

Various representations and reminders have been made to government authorities for the login
credentials or the data available with themselves pertaining to the Company. Since the required data
was not available to us, the statutory compliances and dues outstanding have not been verified to its
accuracy. We are unable to determine consequential impact, if any, of these aforesaid weaknesses on
these financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities disclosed under Note 25 have been continued to be similar as that of previous
year. In addition to the same, Cenvat Credit availed in non-current assets and income tax dues as
extracted from the claims made by the authority has been disclosed as a contingent liability as there 1s
a contingency and estimated value needs to be recorded.
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5.

(xvit)) The Company has not complied with the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulatons, 2015 that are as follows:

{a) Failed to file its financial results for the periods ended 30 September 2017 and subsequent penods
ull date.

(b) Governance report have been submitted latest till Dec” 17.

(¢} Annual reports have been timely submitted only upto FY 2015-16.

Consequently, we are unable to comment on the impact, if any, of this non-compliance on the
financial statements,

In view of our observations in paras 4(1) to 4(xv) above, we are unable to determine the adjustments,
that are necessary in respect of the Company’s assets, liabilitics as on balance sheet date, income and
expenses for the year, the elements making up the statement of changes in equity and cash fow
statement and related presentation and disclosures in the financial statements.

Disclaimer of opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
Accordingly, we do not exptess an opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Material uncertainty related to "going concern"

We invite attention to ‘Annexure A’ to our report which expatiates the facts and circumstances that indicate
that a matenal uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Having regard to the totality of the facts and circumstances stated in the said Annexure, it 1s
our considered opinion that the Company will be able to continue s a going concern only if it is able to raise
funds for payment of staff salaries, payment of starutory liabilities and for servicing its debts on the due date
and if it is able to comply with the provisions of the Real Estate Regulation Act, 2016. Our opinion about the
financial statements for the vear under review is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matters listed in ‘Annexure B’ to this report have been
communicated to the management and discussed with the management.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Compantes (Auditor s Report) Order, 2016 (the Order), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub- section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and except for the effects, if

Continuation Sheet.............
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any, of the matters described in the basis for diselaimer of opinion paragraph, we enclose in the “Annexure
C”. a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

(i) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were unable to obtain all the informaton
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audir;

(b) due to the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we
are unable to state whether proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement and the statement of changes
in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account as maintained;

(d) due to the effect of the related matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we state

as below-
(i) the financial statements do not comply with IND AS 8, IND AS 16, IND AS 17 and IND AS 113

as specified under Section 133 of the Acg

(i)  we are unable to state whether the financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (other than those referred to in paragraph 6(1i)(d)(1) above) specified under Section 133
of the Act;

(¢) the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph above may have an adverse effect
on the functioning of the Company;

(f) the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018, and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act except that the then Managing Director (no
longer with the Company) has not provided such representation to the Company. Accordingly, we are
unable to comment as to whether the aforesaid individual was disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Acty

(g) the reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph above;

(h) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectivencss of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure D', and

(i) with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
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i view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for disclaimer of opinion, we are unable
to state whether note 25 to the standalone financial statements discloses the complete impact of
pending liigations on the financal positon in the standalone financial statements of the
Company;

i, view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for disclaimer of opinion, we are unable
to state whether the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for matenal foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts (the Company
does not have any derivative contracts); and

iiL. there has been delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For R C Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRIN: 103952W /W100156

(Partner)
Membership No. 115080
Date: 21" Sept, 2020

UDZN: 20//5050 HA PAAAICYg
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Independent Auditors' Report of Even Date
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.

On standalone Ind AS financial statements
Annexure A - Material uncertainty related to "going concern”

The Directors' Responsibility Statement in the Board's Report states that the accounts have been prepared
on a "going concern” basis. However, whether the Company is a "going concern” as at the balance sheet
date is 2 question of opinion which must be answered having regard to the totlity of the facts and
circumstances of the case. Accordingly, we state below the facts and circumstances which may have a
material impact on this issue.

A. Financial facts & circumstances
1. Default in repayment of instalments of loans obtained from banks & financial institutions and in

payment of interest on such loans:

During the year under review, the Company has been generally unable to service the loans obtained from
banks & financial institutions in accordance with the contractual terms conmined in the sanction letters
issued by such banks & financial institutions ie. the Company has been generally unable to repay
instalments and pay interest on the due date. We wrote a letter to each bank / financial institution in order
to obtain information about delay in payment of interest & repayment of loan instalment, status of the
account as at the balance sheet date & the overdue instalments / interest as at the balance sheet date. The
amount of overdue instalments / interest as stated in the Annexure C to the statutory audit report is
derived from the replies we received from the banks / financial institutions, if any, or, in the absence of
such replies, from the information available in the Company's records.

2. Default in repayment of fixed deposits obtained from the public and in payment of interest

thereon:
The Company has defaulted in repayment of fixed deposits and in payment of interest thereon. Please refer

Para (v) of Annexure C to our statutory audit report for details,

3. Default in payment of statutory dues on account of tax deducted at source, self-assessment tax,
Maharashtra Value-added tax, service tax, employees' provident fund dues etc.:

The Company filed its return of income under the Income Tax Act for Assessment Year 2016-17 (FY
2015-16) on 30/11/2016. As per the said return, an amount of Rs.1251.68 lacs are payable by the Company
on account of self-assessment tax and interest. However, till the date of this report the Company has paid
Rs. 45 lacs only and the balance Rs.1206.68 lacs are sull unpaid. The Income Tax Department has treated
the said return as invalid u/s 139(9) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, on the ground that self-assessment tax
has not been paid and has asked the Company to show cause why prosecution should not be initiated for
such default.

The Company has not paid as required by law the tax deducted at source in the year under review under
various sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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The Company has also not paid as required by law the amounts payable on account of service tax,
employees' provident fund dues, ESIC dues, employees' profession tax, Maharashtra Value added tax, and

contribution to gratuity fund managed by LIC.
The details of these statutory liabilities are stated in Annexure C to our statutory audit report,

Dishonour of cheques issued by the Company and consequent criminal cases against the
Company under Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act

Based on the information available from previous year, we are informed that during the previous year under
review, 1,220 cheques issued by the Company were returned unpaid for want of adequate balance in the
Company's accounts. The aggregate amount of such cheques is Rs.70.14 crores. Out of the 1220 cases of
dishonour, complaints u/s 138, NIA 1938 were filed in 51 cases of which the aggregate amount is Ra.11.41
crotes. The Company subsequently paid Rs.21.04 crores aganst some dishonoured cheques before or after
filing of complaints.

Rejection of dividend proposed by the Board of Directors for FY 2015-16 at the Company's Annual
General Meeting:

When the Company's financial statements for FY 2015-16 were finalized in May 2016, the Board of
Directors recommended to the Annual General Meeting to be held in September 2016 that a dividend of
Re. 1.25 per share be paid to the holders of the Company's equity shares. The total outflow on account of
dividend and additional tax thereon would have been Rs. 388.17 lakhs, However, the resolution at the
Company's Annual General Meeting held on 29/09/2016 was not passed and the proposed dividend was

not declared.
Delay in payment of salaries to staff:

As at the date of this report, the Company has been unable to pay some of its staff for full year in addition
to four months of previous year. The unpaid employee remuneration as at the balance sheet date is Rs.

531.46 lakhs.

Other facts & circumstances
Resignation of staff and delay in appointment of replacements:

According to the statistics provided by the HR Department for previous year, the Company had 514
employees on 01/04/2016. During the FY 2016-17, 259 employees resigned whereas only 54 new
employees joined the Company. Consequently, the Company had 309 employees as at 31/03/2017. No
new data of the current employees available to us.

Progress of incomplete construction projects

Relying on the management representations, the construction activity in all the major construction sites in
and around Pune had slowed down considerably.

Continuation Sheet.............
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10.

11.

Rating by credit rating agency

The credit rating of the Company has been down-graded by CARE from BBB+ to D in respect of long-
rerm bank facilities and to C Negative in respect of Fixed Deposit Programme and to C Negative in respect
of non-convertible debentures as per their communications dated 22/03/2017.

Pending litigations

The Company and its promoters face and are likely to face litigations on account of dishonour of cheques
and defaults in payment of statutory dues, fixed deposits, bank loans and generally dues payable o

suppliers.

Non Maintenance of Records

The company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

. No Documentary Evidence

No documentary evidence was provided as to the details of the periodicity and extent of physical
verification of Fixed Assets carred out by the management. Accordingly, we are unable to comment
whether there are any material discrepancies and on the manner in which they have been dealt with in the

books of account.
No Evidence for Physical Verification

There is no evidence of physical verification by management of inventories available on record. Hence we
are unable to comment on the reasonability of venfication process and also on the discrepancies, if any.
The land valuation report provided to us is for the year 2016 and it does not match with the workings
provided to us regarding the area and value of land held as inventory.
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Independent Auditors' Report of Even Date
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Lid.

On standalone Ind AS financial statements
Annexure B - Key Audit Matters

The following key audit matters are emphasized in order to interpret these financial statements
1. Compliance with the provisions of the Real Estate Regulation Act, 2016

Government of India has enacted the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act 2016 and all the
sections of the Act came into force with effect from May 1, 2017. Under this Act, Government of
Maharashtra has established Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority (Maha RERA), vide
MNotification No. 23 dated 8th March 2017, for regulation and promotion of real estate sector in the State of
Maharashtra. Consequently, Government of Maharashtra also promulgated the Maharashtra Real Estate
(Regulation and Development) (Registration of Real Estate Projects, Registration of Real Estate Agents,
Rates of Interest and Disclosures on Website) Rules, 2017 and other Rules. The last date for registration of
on-going projects under Real Estate Regulation Act was 31st July 2017. These changes in the regulatory
environment applicable to real estate development companies are so radical that no such company can
continue in business without complying with the new regulations.

2. Commitments for DSK Dream City Project & Other Projects

The Company has made commitments in respect of its on-going projects. The Company's success will
depend upon its ability to raise funds for meeting these commitments.

3. Requirements of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company has been facing capacity issues due to loss of key employees while meeting the need for
servicing information requirements and providing clarifications to multiple investigating agencies, providing
information to enable the ongoing asset monetization and restructuring activities and meeting ‘gpoing
concern’ requirements. Further, financials statements from the respective subsidiaries have not been
available to us. On further investigation, it was found that out of 4 subsidiaries being DSK Developers
Corporation, DSK Woods LLC, DSK Southern Projects Pvt Lid & DSK Infra Pvt Lid, 2 domestic
subsidiaries have complied with annual fillings with Registrar of Companies upto 31" March 2016. In view
of the above, the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries have not been available or shall not be available
before the Annual General meeting of the Company. Accordingly, the Company is unable to provide
its Consolidated Financial Statement and salient features of the Financial Statements of the
Company’s Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures in Form AOC-1 as required under Section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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4.

Advances given to unrelated parties

The Company has given advances aggregating to Rs. 1,070 lakhs to unrelated parties for the purpose of
construction & development of real estate projects. However, by the balance sheet date the said parties had
not raised invoices for the work performed by them.

Default committed by DSK Global Education & Research Ltd. (DSKGER)

The Company is surety for the loan advanced by Central Bank of India (CBI) to DSKGER. The said
guarantee was given when DSKGER was a subsidiary of the Company and it continued even after
DSKGER ceased to be a subsidiary. The said contingent liability appears in Note 25 to the financial
statements, On 12/04/2017, CBI has issued a notice to DSKGER u/s 13(2) of the Securitisaion &
Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002, for payment of the
amount outstanding on 11/04/2017 Le Rs. 8200.39 lacs within 60 days from the date of receipt of notice
which remains unpaid tll date.

Possible contractual liability

The Company is unable to reasonably quantify the possible lability that may arise due to non-performance
of the terms of contracts between the Company and its customers & suppliers.



R. C. Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Acconntants
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To the Members of D. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lud.

On standalone Ind AS financial statements
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Annexure C Referred to in Paragraph (i) under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory

requirements’ of Qur Report of Even Date

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of section 143(11) of Companies Act, 2013, we enclose, on the basis of our opinion, our
examination on the relevant records and according to the information and explanation given to us, in the
“Annexure C” a statement on the matters specified in Paragraph 3 & 4 of the said Order.

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets during the financial year under review.

b) The Resolution Professional has physically verified all the fixed assets during the financial
year 2019-20 for the Valuation of Assets under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016. As informed to us, material discrepancies were noticed on such verificaton and the
same have been dealt with in the books of account.

¢) As per the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties owned by the Company whether held in the name of the company or not is
uncertain since the same has been sealed by the ED.

(ii) Inventory

The Resolution Professional appointed by the NCLT order has done Physical Venfication of
inventory during Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. The projects for which they are
pot aware about its presence, are being carried forward in the books as Work in Progress.

(iii) Loan granted to related parties

a) Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion
paragraph 4 of our main report, the Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms or other parties are covered in the register maintained ufs 189 of the
Act. The number of parties and amount involved in the transactions is as follows: -

MNumber of parties

Amount of loans given

Balances (*Lacs)

31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017

Two

11,639.10 | 11,092.86

b) The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of loans, secured or unsecured,
granted by the Company, are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company;

¢) In respect of the loans, secured or unsecured, given by the Company, the terms of
repayments of the principal amount and the payments of the interest have not been



R. C. Jain & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

stipulated. Hence whether the repayment is overdue or not cannot be decided. However,
the Company has made provision of Rs. 4,713.84 Lacs for loans whose recovery
may be doubtful.

Compliance with section 185 & 186

a) The Company has not made investments, granted loans, offered guarantee and security in
compliance with the provisions of Section 185 & Section 186 of CA, 2013. The lmit
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 for granting loans has been exceeded thereby
violating the provisions of the Act.

The Company has obtained an opinion from a professional staung that provisions of Secton 185
of the Companies Act 2013 are not attracted in the matter of giving a guarantee to the bank which
has advanced a loan to one of the related parties viz. D.S, Kulkarni & Co.

Deposits

As at 31st March 2017 the Company had outstanding deposits of Rs. 15.06 crores from 1,642
depositors. During the FY 2017-18 and up to the date of this report, no. of depositors have not
been increased instead the amount of deposit accepted have been reduced. The ECS for payment
of interest had not been issued generally since November 2016 but made few payments during FY
2017-18. However, no Order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal in this regard.

Cost Records

The company has not maintained the cost as required by the Companies (Cost Record & Audit)
Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government u/s 148(1) of the Act. The Company has also
appointed a cost auditor. The last date for completion of cost audit 15 28/09/2017.

Payment of statutory dues

There have been instances of delay in depositing with the appropriate authonties undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, TDS, Income-tax, Sales-tax,
Wealth Tax, Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it

The details regarding payment of Rs. in Lacs
statutory dues are as follows:
Particulars Total dues as | Dues for
on 31/03/2018 | more than 6
months  as
on
31/03/2018
1. Tax deducted / collected at source 1,119.87 1,119.87
2. Service Tax 28917 289.17
3. Gratuity 216.34 216.34
4. Leave Encashment 63.94 63.94
5. Maharashtra Value-added tax 470.16 470.16
6. Provident Fund 87.37 87.37
7. Employees' State Insurance 11.23 11.23

Continuation Sheet.
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8. Profession Tax 3.90 3.90
9. Goods and Service Tax 18.51 18.51

b} There are no disputed amounts outstanding in respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education and
Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it as at the last day of the
Financial year. The disputed amounts in respect of income tax are as follows:

Forum where dispute is pending | Assessment |As at 31" | As at 31
Year March ‘18 March 19
(Rs. in | (Rs. in
Lakhs) Lakhs)
1. High Court of Judicarure, Mumbai_| 2004-05 6G7.25 67.25
2. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2005-06 152.02 152.02
3. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2006-07 311.45 31145
4. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2007-08 418.80 418.80
5. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2008-09 116.00 116.00
6. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2009-10 156.93 156.93
7. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2010-11 99.95 00.05
8. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2011-12 3547 3547
9. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2012-13 3615 36.15

The ITAT Pune decided the Company's appeals for AY 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08,
2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12 & 2012-13 in favour of the Company. However, the Depr has
filed a reference with the High Court of Judicature at Mumbar

¢) During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund in accordance with the provisions of section 124(5) the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 4 of the Companies (Declaration & Payment of Dividend) Rules 2014, made thereunder. The
unpaid dividend remains outstanding in the books from FY 2009-10.

(viii) Default in repayment of bank loan

a) The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture holders as on the balance sheet
date and as on the date of this report. The Company has also delayed repayment of dues to
financial institutions and banks during the year. The details of overdue interest and overdue
principal of the Company's borrowings are as follows:

Bank / Financial Institution Amount overdue as on 31/3/18

Interest Principal

(Rs. in Lakhs) | (Rs. in Lakhs)
1. ICIC] Housing Finance Co 441.19 8,946.22
2. State Bank of India 21.19 12,579.81
3. Syndicate Bank 809.24 7,667.00
4, Union Bank of India 259.79 6,202 86
5. Bank of Maharashtea 458.28 6,292.00
6. IDBI Bank 636.07 4,722.12
7. India Bulls Housing Finance 594.43 4,098.45
8. Vijava Bank 0L00 1,768.41
9. Sanpli Urban Cooperative Bank Lrd. 000 204.98
10. The Kalyan Janata Sahakan Bank 140.35 1,336.72
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11. Tata Capital Housing Finance Ltd 94.48 713.53
12. Bajaj Finance Ltd 202.13 1,403.31
13, Aditya Birla Finance Ltd 17.80 936.47
14. STCI Finance Ltd 42427 2,689.45
15, HDEC Bank Ltd. 0.02 1.25
16. Toyota Financial Services 0.43 7.07
17. Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. 0.00 (.58
(ix) Application of proceeds of term loans / public offer

()

(xi)

(xii)

(i)

(xiv)

(xv)

The company has applied the teem loans obtained during the year towards the purpose for which
the loans were obtained. During the year under review, the Company has not raised moneys by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

Fraud

No material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the financial year

under review,
Managerial remuneration

The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration dunng the year. Hence the
contents of paragraph 3(xi) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Nidhi Company

The contents of Paragraph 3(xii) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable since the Company is not a
Nidhi Company.

Related party transactions & compliance with 8.177 & 188

For want of complete records, we are unable to comment about the transactions with related
parties and to express our opinion whether these transactions are in compliance with Sections 177
& 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the available details thereof have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Preferential allotment / private placement of shates or convertible debentures &
compliance with S 42

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allorment/private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year.

Non-cash transactions with directors ete. & compliance with 5.192

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of the disclaimer of opinion paragraph
of the main report, according to the information available as at present and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the Company , the Company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

||||||||||
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(xvi) Compliance with S.45IA of RBI Act

The contents of paragraph 3(xvi) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable since the company 15 not
required to register itself with RBI under section 451A of the RBI Act.

For R C Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 103952W /W100156

igo

ra Joisher

(Partner)

Membership No. 115080
Date: 217 Sept, 2020
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Independent Auditors' Report
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.

On standalone Ind AS financial statements

Annexure D Referred to in Paragraph (b)(vi) under the heading "Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements' of Our Report of Even Date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-secuon 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporung of D. S. Kulkarni Developers
Ltd. (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considening
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (TCAT’).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence ro company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely prepasaton
of reliable financial information, s required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effecovely in all

material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and its operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating cffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fauly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

¢) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statemenis.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were generally
operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
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established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. However, by the end of the year the efficacy of the IFC system
was adversely affected because of resignation of staff responsible for operating the system and
delay in appointment of suitable replacements.

For R.C Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 103952W /W100156

Metra Joisher

(Partner)

Membership No. 115080
Date: 21° Sept, 2020
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0. 5. KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN : LAS2 PNI9SIFLCOSI MG
Standalone Balance Sheet as at st March 2018

= As at 31 March 2008 As at 31 March 2017
PagiEnincs Nores (Amt. in Rs, Lakhs) (Ams. in Rs. Lakhs)
1 ASSETS
1 MNon-Current Assets
{ay  Propersty, plant and equgemens 3 1,581.24 2,196.28
(b} Capiral weork-n-peogoess 4
{c Investment property 5 272491 27249
() Oeher [ntenggble ssets [ 4403 3250
(cy  Intangble assees under development 7 - SHAS
(fy Fmancial Assers
i} lnvestments L] 8495 28496
) Loans q 728006 6T
] Other Mon-Curnnt assets Tk 102151 14443
Total Mon-Current Asscts 12,936.71 13,32L.70
2 Current Asscis
() Invenfous n LAT 16500 16360912
(b  Fmancal Asscts
i Trade Receivabbo i2 266388 TSR
) Cashand Cash equivalents 13 24300 38607
i) Loans 14 2200 2206005
Total Curreny Assets 1,52 378.89 1,89,959.42
Tatal Assets 1,95,315.60 2,03,281,13
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(ay Share capital 15 258010 2580 10
(b Cither equaty 14 333748 #3810
15,917.58 42,061.11
LIABILITIES
1 MNom-Current Lisbilitics
fa) Fusncisl labahies
i Boreowings 17 T2 0881 0060
(b} Deefecred rax habilines (Met) 18 42068 4267
fe) Cither mem-corent Babehitics 19 20157 170,52
74,223.06 69,246.59
2 Current Habilities
{a) Finsncal kabdies
] Peoeponaings 20 10,5798 30 G
i) Tewbe payables 21 5,364,760 15, TOR 50
iy Oher fnancral lalnbtics 8 el B 6T i B3
(b} Othex cucrent labilines ] 120887 5,562TH
(&) Provisions 4 450256 119066
& B5,174.56 9107541
Tousl Equity and Lisbalitres 195, 315 61 2,03,251.13
Contingent Lisbilities not provided for: 25 25,204 35 1066709
Corporate information and statement of accounting policics 12

The sccompanying notes are an mitegral part of these Buancial statements.
As per cor audit ceport of even dise,

For B C Jain & Associaies
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo WIS

Place: Mumbai
Dates 2151 Sepr 2020

For D5 Kulkarni Dexlopers Limived
(A company wnder Compoeate. Insolvency Res
dated 26th Sepromber, 2019)

ple)~

e, Manici A 1
Regtseeataon ne [EELTPA-001 /1P
(e affaic; business and peopenty. of L
bemg managed by the Resolobion peofes
Company only without sny personal Rabsiry}
Place: Mumbai

Dater 21wt Sept 2020

aig by NCLT Ohdee
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D. 5. KULEARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED

CIN : L4AS201IPN 1991PLCOG3340

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 3st March, 2018

3lsr March 18 3lst March 17
Sarteutary Notes | (Ast, in Rs, Lakis) (Amt. in Rs. Lakls)
I.  |Revenue from operations (Gross) 26 6,901.97 T H46.03
Il |Other mcome 27 H54.60 1,665.93
Total Revenue (1 + T} 7,756.57 11,511.96
III. [Expenscs:
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 23 5210038 22.464.25
Changes w inventories of Finshed Goods, Work-in-Progress and 29 644112 (15,050.12)
Seock-in-Trade
Employee benefits expense 30 447.94 98348
Officed admin expenscs | 13502 97358
Selling cxpenses 32 6843 TR1.81
Frnance costs i3 LRG0T 64571
Diepreciation and amiortrzation CXpEnse LT 616,25 62597
(Other expenses 35 20,53 (214
Corponate social responsbility expenses 36 + =
Total expenses 14,799.85 11,422.54
“ Profit/(koss) before exceptional irems and tax (1- IV) (T1-1V)
(7,043.28) B9.42
V. |Exceptional [tems
¥I.  |Profit/{loss) before tax (V-VI) (7,043.28) 80.42
VIL |Tax expense:
Cugrent tax
Adjustment of Depreciaton on account of mransitional provision of
the Companies Act, 2013
Deferred o
Total
Vil Profit {Loss) for the period from continuing operations (V- (7,043.28) £89.42
" [VIIDy
Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations
K |Tax expense of discontinued operations
i Profit/ (loss) from Discontinued operations {after tax) (X-XI) (7,043.28) 89,42
XIL. |Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XIT) (7.43.28) B0.42
XIIL. |Other Comprehensive Income
A (1) Trems that wall not be reclassified 1w profit or loss
{a) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit scheme
(1) Income tax relatng o wens that will not be reclassified 1o
profit or loss
(b} pains andd losses from mvestments in equity instruments
designated ar fair value through other comprehensive meome
(1) Income tax relanng o ems that will not be reclassified 10
profit or loss
Total
B (1) Tecims thar will be reclassified o profit or kss 19.42

(i) Ineome tax relatmg to items that will be reclassified e profit
o Iraes
Total




Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIIT+XIV)
X1V, |(Comprsing Profit
{Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period) (7,043.28) 108,84
XV. |Eamings perequity share {for continuing operation): L 1)
i [Basic : 042
({if) [Ditueed - 042
VL |Eamings per equity share {for discontinued operation):
() |Basc
(i) |Dnhated
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing
" |operation):
(i) |Basic - .42
i) |Diluted 2 A

“The accompanying notes arc an micgral part of these financial statements.

As per our audit repert of even date.
For R C Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: W100156

> Ths

VS
Meera Joisher
Partner

Membership No. 115080

Place: Mumbai
Date: 215t Sept 2020

VDT N!-261/5080RAAPATECITS

For DS Kulkarni Deviopers Limited
(A company under Corporate Insolvency Resobur
by NCLT Order dated 26th September, 2019)

Mr. Manoj Agarval
Registration oo, TRBTTPA-001 fTP-PO0T14 \
{The affairs, business and property of DS KubGg

whio act as mpent of the Company only without any pessonal
Iexboaliny.)

Pluce: Mumbai
Date: 2lst Sept 2020



D, 5. Kulkamni Developers Lid.
CIN: LASZ0PNI99PLCDG3340
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2|

202

Corporate information
D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. s a public company domiciled in India and i incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, Its shares are listed on two recopnised stock exchanges in India Le BSE & NSE

Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in India. The Company s engaged in the business of real estatc
development in India.

An application for initiation of corporate insolvency resolution process (‘CIRP) of D § Kulkarni Devleopers Limited was
admitted by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai vide order dated 26 September 2019 under the
Insolvency and Hankruptey Code, 2016 (1BC) and hence currently, Ricoh s under CIRP. Mr. Manoj Agarwal (TBRI
registeation number (IBBI/TPA-001/TP-PO0T14/2017-18/11222) was appointed as Intenm Resolution Professional (TRIY)
vide this order.

Accordingly, the RP had been managing the operations of the Company, s a going coneeen, inviting, vetting and admitting
the claims against the Company and managing/supervising the operations of the Company as part of CIRP,

The standalone financial statements are prepared for the period ending 26 September 2019,
The IND AS financial statements were approved by the Resolution Porfessional in absence of propedy constimted Board
of Directors, whose powers remain suspended during Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 'CIRP).

Significant accounting policies

Date of adoption of Ind AS:

The net worth of DSKDL as per the audited standalone B/S as at 31/03/2016 exceeds Rs 500 ¢r. Hence, the date of
adopnion of IND AS for the Company & its subsidiadies s 01/04/2016 (Rule 4 (1){)(a) of the Companics (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

The company nceds to prepare standalone financial statements following IND AS for the Company & irs subsidiaries for
financial year ending 31/03/2018 (Rule 4 (9) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.)

Ind AS Financial Statements for FY 2017-18

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company will be as follows:
i Balance sheet as ae 31,/03/2017 and 31,/03/2018
il Profit and Loss Sttement for the year ended 31/03/2017 and 31/03/2018
iti. Cash Flow Starement for the vear ended 31/3/2017 and 31/3/2018

v Notes to Financial Statements

Ind AS which are not applicable to the Company:
i Ind AS 11 - Construction Contracts: This Ind AS is not applicable since the Company is engaged in the business of
real estare development and not execution of construction contracts.

it Ind AS 26 - Accounting & Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans: This Ind AS is not applicable since the
Company is not in business of offering Reticement Benefit Plans

il Ind AS 29 - Financial Reporting in the Hyperinflationary Economies: This Ind AS is not applicable since the
Company does not operate in Hyperinflationary Economies.
v Ind AS 41 - Agriculture: This Ind AS is not applicable since the Company is not engaged in agriculrure.

v Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payments: This Ind AS s nor applicable since the Company has not entered into contracts
which require share-based payments.

vi Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations: This Ind AS is not applicable since the Company has not entered into any
arrangements of the nature of mergers & / or demergers,

vii Ind AS 104 - Insurance Contracts: This Ind AS is not applicable since the Company is not engaged in the business of
ISSUINg InsurAnce contracts.

v Ind AS 106 - Exploration & Evaluation of Mineral Resources: This Ind AS is not applicable since the Company is
not engaged in the business of exploration of mineral resources.
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Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments: This Ind AS is not applicable since the Company s engaged only in one segment,
namely, real estate development.

Ind AS 114 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts: This Ind AS is not applicable since the Company does not conduct rate.
cegulated activities.

204 Basis of preparation

Wi

On September 26, 2019 the Hon'ble MNational Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) had admitted the petition for ininating
the Corporate Insolvency Resolution (CIR) Process under the provisions of the Insalvency Bankruptey Code, 2016
(IBC). Under the CIR Process, a resolution plan is to be prepared and approved by the COC. Further the resoluton
plan approved by the COC will also need NCLT approval. As the Company is under resolution process, the financial
statements have been presented on a “going concem™ basis.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply in all material respects with the relevant
provisions of the Act and with the Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31st March 2018, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31st March 2017,

These financial statemients have been presented in accordance with the provisions of Division 11 of Schedule 111 o
the Companies Act, 2013

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convennion, unless required / permitted otherwise by
applicable Ind AS.

As required by Section 128(1) of the Act, these financial statements are prepared in accordance with the accrual
method of accounting with revenues recognized and expenses accounted on their accrual including provisions /
adjustments for committed obligations and amounts determined as payable or receivable during the period.

1 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian AS requires the management to make judgements,

cstimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
lbilities and disclosures of contingent abilities at the date of the end of the reporting periods and the reported
amaounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting periods. Although these cstimates are based on the management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertamty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requitng a materal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future pedods. Actual results
may differ from these estimares, Estimates and underying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimares are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised,

vii The standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (TNE 00,000,

except when otherwise indicared.

205 Ind AS1- Presentation of Financial Statements:

The identification of an entity’s significant accounting policics is an important aspect of the financial statements. Tnd
AS 1.117 requires disclosure of the significant accounting policies comprising

a  the measurement basis (or bases) used in preparing the financial statements and
b the other accounting policies used that are relevant to an understanding of the fnancial starements.

As required by Tnd AS 101 the Company has used the same accounting policies in its opening Ind AS balance sheet
and throughout all periods presented in its subsequent Ind AS financial statements {the first annual financial statements
in which an entity adopts Ind AS by an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance with Ind AS). Those
accounting policics comply with cach Ind AS cffective ar the end of its fiest Ind AS reporting period, except as
specified in Ind AS 101 (eg, when the exceptions in Ind AS 101 prohubit retrospective application or the Company
avails itself of one of Ind A5 101's veluntary exemptions). The Company docs not apply different versions of Ind AS
that were effective at eadier dates. The Company may apply a new Ind AS that is not yer mandatory if that Ind AS
permits early application,



i Current versus non-current classification - Ind AS 160

a  The Company presents assets and liabilives in the balance sheet based on current [/ non-current classification,

b Anasset is treated as current when it is;
P Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating eyele
P Held primanly for the purpose of trading
P Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, except work-in-progress of
real estate development projects.
P Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for at least
rwelve months after the reporting period

¢ All other assets are classified as non-current.

d A lisbiity is treated as cureent when:
P Itis expected to be setted in normal operating cycle
P Itis held primasily for the purpose of trading
P It is due to be sentled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
P There 5 no unconditional right to defer the serdement of the lability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilines as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are chssified as non-current assets and labilities.

g The operating cycle is the time berween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified 3-5 years as its operating cycle.

-

206 Ind AS 2 - Inventories

i
i

Inventodies to be valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
Costs incurred in construction of each project are accounted for as follows:
a  Construction materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs mcurred 0 bangmng the inventonies o
their present location and condition. Cost s determined on fiest in, first out basis,

b Finished tenements and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materdals and labour and 2
proportion of overheads based on the normal operating capacity, Cost is determined on fiest in, first out basis,

¢ Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to ther
present location and condition. Cost 18 determined on weighted average basis.

i Initial cost of inventogies includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in OCL, in

respect of the purchases of raw materials.

v Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion

and the estimared costs necessary to make the sale.

The management of the company has valued the invetnories at Cost complying with the requirements of
INDAS 2

207 Ind AS 7 - Cash and cash equivalents

Ind AS 7.18 allows entities to report cagh flows From operating activities using cither direcr method or indirect method.
The regulation 34(2)(c ) of Chaprer TV of Securitics & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, requires listed companies 1o present cash flow from operating activities only under
wndirect method. The Company presents its cash flows using indirect method,

Certain working capital adjustments and other adjustments included in the accompanying statement of cash flows
refleet the change in balances between 31/03/2017 and 31,/03/2018.

The Company has reconciled peofit before tax to net cash flows from operating activities. However, reconciliation of
profir after tx s also acceptable under Ind AS 7,

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
odginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes m value,

For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's
cash management.



208 Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The Company's Profit & Loss Statement presents profit / loss from ordinary activities. The extra-ordinary or éxceptional
items or changes in accounting estimates and policies during the year under review are disclosed separately as per Ind AS &

209 Ind AS 10 - Events after Reporting period
i These financial statements consider approprately the impact of events which occur after the reporting period but
before the financial statements are approved and which have an cffect on the balance sheet and profit and loss
srtement.

it The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parcnt when the
distrbution is authorised and the distabution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in Tndia, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the sharcholders. A comesponding amount is recopnised
directly in equity.

w Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets o be distnbuted with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity. -~

w Upon distnbution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is-recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

210 Ind AS 12 - Income taxes
i Tax expense comprises current and deferred fax.
i Current income tax assets and lisbilities arc measured at the amount expected o be recovered from or paid o the
rueation authoritics, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that arc enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

iti Deferred tax is provided using the Lability method on temporary differences between the mx bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused fax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are to be recognised to the extent that it is probable thar mxable profic wall be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized

i The Company has not recognised any deferred tax asset/liability in addition to last year as the Company is
making losses and probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
v Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, excepe:
P When the tax incurred on a purchase of asscts or services is not recoverable from the mxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid 5 recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as pant of the expense item, as
applicable

P When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

vi The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the mxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

211 IndAS 16 - Property Plant and Equipment

i Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), PPE were carried in the balance sheet at cost of acquisition less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, In exercise of the option vested in the
Company as per Para 29 of Ind AS 16, the Company has chosen the cost model as per Para 30 of Ind AS 16 for
all items of PPE. Accordingly, the Company has not revalued the PPE at 1st April 2015.

i Under the Ind AS compliant Schedule 1T, land and building are presented as two scpamate classes of PPE. In contrast,
paragraph 37 of Ind AS 16 appears to be having fexibility to treat land and building cither as one dlass or as o
separate classes. It also states thar a class of PPE is a grouping of assets of a similar nature and use in an enrity's
operations, However, in accordance with Para 58 of Ind AS 16 and based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of land and building, the management has determined that they constitute two separate classes of
property for presentation in the financial statements.



it The Company has recognized items of property, plant & equipment (PPE) in accordance with Ind AS 16.07 only if it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the stem will flow to the entity and if the cost of acquisition
or construction  of the items of PPE can be measured reliably in accordance with Ind AS 16.10-16.27,

iv The cost of PPE items includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives,

v When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

vi The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition eriteria for a provision are met

vii As required by Schedule IT to the Companics Act, 2013, the management estimate every year, on the basis of technical
asgessment, the useful life and residual value of items of PPE, if the useful life / residual value are different from that
specified in Schedule 11

vii Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets in accordance
with Schedule IT o the Companics Act, 2013.

i An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gin or loss arsing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asser) is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

212 Ind AS 17 - Leases
i The detcomination of whether an arrangement is (or containg) a lease is based on the substance of the armngement at
the inception of the lease. The armangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the armngement conveys a right to use the assct or assets, even if that right is not

explicitly specified in an armngement.

i A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially to
the lessee all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership is classified s a finance lease. A lease in which the lessor
does not transfer substantially to the lessee all the nisks and rewards of ownership of an asset is classificd as an
operating lease,

tii Initial dircet costs incurred in negotiating and arminging an operating lease are added w the carrying amount of the
leased asser and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as renral income.

iv. A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease teom, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asser and the lease term.

v Where the Company is the lessee,

a  hmance leases are capitalised ar the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments

b lease payments arc apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease lability so as to achicove a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

¢ finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are dicectly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company's general
policy on the borrowing costs.

d  contingent rentals are recognised as expenses i the periods in which they arc incurred.

€ operating lease payments are not recognised as an expeénse in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term because the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

vi Where the Company is the lessor,

a  finance lease ncome is not allocated to accounting periods 5o as o reflect a constant perindic rafe of return on
the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease because the Company does not, having regard o the
totality of facts & circumstances, follow the policy of straight-lining of lease rent income.
rental income from operating lease is recognised over the term of the relevant lease,
confingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed,

d  amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in
the leases.

Lo T~



¢ In accordance with Ind AS 17 lease payments under an operating lease are not recognised as an expense /
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term becanse the payments to the lessor are structured o increase
in bne with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflatonary cost increases.

213 Ind AS 18 - Revenue

1

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, tking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or dutics collected on behalf of the government.

The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue armangements since it is the primary obligor in
all the revenue areangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed w inventory and credit risks.

Hased on the Educational Material on Ind AS 18 issued by the ICAL the Company has assumed that recovery of excise
duty flows to the Company on its own account. This is for the reason that it is a liability of the manufacturer which
farms part of the cost of production, irespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise
duty flows to the Company on its own account, revenue includes excise duty.

Sales tax / value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on
vilue added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria deseribed below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

a Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of jroods is measured ar the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, rade discounts and
volume rebates.

b Revenue from incomplete projects to be recognised in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Accounting for Real Estate Transactions issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as
notificd by Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment) Rules, 2016, as per Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 18, The same has not been recognised due to lack of evidences of toral
sales incurred for specific projects in previous year,

Revenue from incomplete projects 15 not recognized unless the outcome of a real estare project can be
estimated reliably. Revenue is recognised under the percentage completion method only when the events in (2)
to {d) below are completed.

I Al critical approvals necessary for commencement of the project have been obtained, ‘These include,

wherever applicable;

(i) Environmental and other clearnees,

(i) Approval of plans, designs, etc.

(1ai) Tirle to land or other tights to development/ construction.
(i) Change in land use.

2 When the stage of completion of the project reaches a reasonable level of development. A reasonable level
of development is not achicved if the expenditure incurred on construction and development costs is less
than 25 % of the construction and development costs.

3 Atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements with buyers,

4 Atleast 10 % of the contract consideration as per the agreements of sale or any other legally enforceable

documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of cach of the contmcts and it i reasonable
expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the payment terms as defined in the contracts.

5 The completion of the revenue recognition process is usually identified when the following eonditions are
satisfied:
(1) the entity has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the real estate;

(i) the entity retains nether continumg managenal involvement 1o the degree usually associared with
ownership nor effective control over the real estate sold;
(iif) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;



(v} it 15 probable thar the economic benefits associted with the ransaction will flow to the entity; and

{v) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

6 Where transfer of legal ttle s a condition precedent to the buyer taking on the significant risks and rewards
of ownership and accepting significant completion of the seller’s obligation, revenue is not be recognised
tll such ume legal tide is validly transfereed to the buyer.

¢ Revenue in the form of interest on moneys advanced by the Company is recognized only if recovery of both
the interest and principal is certain or if required by the provisions of Section 186(7) of the Companies Act,
2013,

d  Revenue in the form of dividend is recognised when the Company’s night to receive the payment is esmblished,
which is penerally when sharcholders approve the dividend.

e Rental income ansing from operating leises on investment properties is not accounted for on & straight-line
basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature because the Company has determined thar it does not meet cnteria for recognition of lease rental
ineome on stragght-line basis e

» Another systematic basis is more representative of the time patteen in which use benefit denved from the
leased asset is diminished, even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis, or

P The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
tor the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

£ Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when
services are rendered. The company collects service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not
an economic benefit flowing o the company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

g Plant and equipment received from customers: A corresponiding credit to deferred revenue is made. The
Company may agree to deliver one or more services in exchange for the transfersed item of property, plant and
equipment, such as connecting the customer to a network, providing the customer with ongoing access o a
supply of poods or services, or both, The Company wdentifies the separately identifiable services included in the
agreement.

P If only one service s identified, the Company recognises revenue when the service is performed,

B If an ongoing seevice is identified as paet of the agteement, the period over which revenue is recopnised for
that service is geneeally determined by the terms of the agreement with the customer, 1F the agreement does not
specify a period, the revenue is recognised over a perod no longer than the useful life of the transferred asset
used to provide the ongoing service.

P If more than one separately idenufiable service is identfied, the fair value of the total considention received
or recevable for the agreement will be allocared 1o each service and the recognition crteria of Ind AS 18 are
then applied to each service.

However, during the year under review, the Company has not received any plant & equipment from
its customers.
vi In the case of composite contracts, the fur consideration attrbutable to each component of the contract 5 idennfied
and reconded as revenue, However, the Company has not entered into composite contracts during the year
under review,

214 Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits

i “The Company is required to assess the nature of itz employee benefits and make the relevant disclosures

ii Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contnbution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a lability after deducting the contabution already paid. If the contrbution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheer date, then excess 1 recognized as an asset
1o the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund,



215

v

The Company operates a defined benefir gratuiry plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a sepagately
administered fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. The Company has not made provision
for the entire amount calculated by LIC in respect of its liability under the aforesaid plan but has not paid the
entire amount.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the eadier of:

P The date of the plan amendment or curtaillment, and

P The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

MNet interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the ner defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of
profir and loss:

P Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gaing and losses on curtailments and nonroutine
settlements; and

P Net intercst expense or income

The Company is also required to state its policy for termination benefits, employee benefit reimbursements and benefit
risk sharing. Since these are not applicable o the Company, the disclosures related to such benefits have not
heen made.

Ind AS 20 - Government grants

Vi

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with,

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant selates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expecred uscful life of the
related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets; the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts
and released to profit or loss over the expeered useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying
asset Le. by equal anmuml instalments.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the
current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest 5 regarded as a government grane. The loan or
assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference
between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities,

The Company has chosen to present grants related to an expense item as other income in the statement of profit and
los.

However, the Company has not received any grants from the Government during the year under review.

216 Ind AS 21 - Effects of changes in Forcign Exchange Rates

i

i

w

The Company’s standalone financial seatements are presented in INR, which is the company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are intially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction fiest qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if
the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot mres of
exchange at the reportng date.
Exchange differcnces arsing on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profir or loss with the
exception of the following:

a  Exchange differences adsing on monetary items that form part of 4 reporting entity’s net investment in a

foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or
the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate.

b Exchange differences adsing on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Company's net
nvestment of a foreign operation are recognised in OCT until the net investment is disposed of, at which time,
the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

¢ Tax charges and credits attabutable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCL



v

Non-monetary trems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a forcign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fiir value i treated in line with the recognition of the gain or Joss on
the change in fair value of the item (e, translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recopnised in
KL o profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively),

The Company considered the two options available under Indian GAAP, AS 11 -The Effects of changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates with regard to accounting for exchange differences arising on long-term (ie. having 2 term of 12
months or more at the date of its ongination) foreign currency monctary items and  decided to recognize such
exchange differences as income or expense in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The Company
continues this accounting practice because it is in compliance with Ind AS 21,

217 Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the cxtent regarded a3 an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs directly attriburable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capiralised as part of the cost of the asset,

A qualifying asset is an asser that necessarily requires 3 substantial perind of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale.

Borrowing costs that are attrbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized
as part of the cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are recognixed as an expense in the period in which thosc
are incurred.

218 Ind AS 24 - Related party and Disclosures

i
i

The Company has identified related partics as required by Ind AS 24,
In compliance with Ind AS 24, the Company has recognized independent directors & investor directors as key

management  personnel

219 Ind AS 27 & Ind AS 110 - Consolidated and separate Financial Statements

i

As required by Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not prepaced consolidated financial
statements which comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiarics as at 31 March 2018 due 1o
lack of information or books from the said subsidiaries.

Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries have not been been prepared by combining on
a line-to-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses after fully
climinaring intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profits and losses because of unavailability of
data for consolidated fnancial statements and its subsidiaries

220 Ind AS 28 & Ind AS 111 - Investment in associates and joint ventures -

W

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influcnce.

Significant ifluence s the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, bur is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint armngement wherchy the partics that have joint control of the arcangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture,

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an armangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the partics shaning conrrol.

The considerations made m determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar 1o those necessary tm
determine control over the subsidiasies.

The fmancial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Company.

The Company’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equiry method.



vii. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or 3 joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying

amount of the mvestment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the associate or
joint venture since the acquisinon date. Goodwill relating to the associate or jont venture is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.
After apphcation of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
Inss on its investment in IS associate of joint venture. At cach reporting date, the Company determines whether there i
objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the
Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recovemble amount of the associate or
joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’
in the statement of profit or loss.

vill The statement of profit and loss reflects the Company’s share of the results of operations of the associte or joint
venture. Any change in OCI of those investees 18 presented as part of the Company’s OCL In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the assocate or joint venture, the Company recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Company and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
assOCEe 07 joint veniure.

ix If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or 2 joint venture cquals or exceeds its interest in the associate of joint
venture {which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the enory discontnues recognising it share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

x The aggregate of the Company’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the
statement of profit and loss,

xi. Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Company measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associare or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss

xii The Company's inteeest in joint operations as per Ind AS 111.20is recognised in the form of

P Assers, including its share of any assets held jointly
P Lubilities, including its share of any liabilitics incurred jointy
P Revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation
P Share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation
» Expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly
i During the financial years under review, the Company may have some interest in any associate or joint
venture which is not determined due to lack of information or records maintained.

221 Ind AS 32, Ind AS 107 & Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments : Prescatation & Disclosures:

1 A financial instrument 1 any contract that gives ase to a Anancial asset of one entity and a financial lability or equity
mstrument of another entity,

u Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets: All financial assets are recognised initially at amortized
cost plus; in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs thar are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets

i Su'huql-.l(mt measurement of financial assets: For puq'xlm‘ of suh:scqumt &:mufc'mmr, financial assets are
chassified in four categories:

a P Debr mstruments at amortised cost

b Debt instruments ar fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

¢ I Debt instruments, denvanves and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (IF'VTPL)
d P Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)



w Debt instruments at amortised cost: A ‘debr mstrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following

i

conditions are met

a P The asset is held within a business model whose objective i to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flowes, and
b Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPL) on the pronapal amount outstanding,
This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets arc
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss. This category generally applics to trade and other receivables,

* Debt instrument at FVTOCE: A ‘debt instrument’ is chissified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are

mek

a P The objective of the business model s achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the

financial aszets, and

b P The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially a5 well as ar each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {OCT), However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&l
Intecest earned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrament is reported as interest income using the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) method.

The Company does not have any financial asset in the form of debt instruments at FVTOCI,

Debt instrument at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the crtera for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, 15 dassified as at FVTPL

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTONC]
cateri, a8 at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or climinates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency {referred o as faccounting mismatch’),

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured ar fair value with all changes recopnized in the
P&l

The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Equity investments at FVTPL: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Faquity
instruments which are held for trading and contngent consideration recogmised by an acquirer in a business
combination 1o which Ind AS103 applics are classified as at FVTPL.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recopnized in the
P&l

The Company does not have any financial assct in the form of equity instruments at FVTPL,

Equity investments at FVTOCI: For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such clection on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recopnized in the OCIL. There is no recydling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the camulative gain or loss within equity.

The Company does not have any financial asset in the form of equity instruments at FVTOCI.
Derecognition: A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asser or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (Le. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

P ‘The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
P The Company has transferred its nghts to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received eash flows in full without matermal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arcangement; and either



(1) the Company has transferred sabstantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(i} the Company has neither wansferred nor remined substanually all the risks and rewards of the asser, but has
transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
armangement, it evaluates if and 1o whar extent it has retained the nsks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the rzks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recopnise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measiced
on 4 basis that réflects the Aghts and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of 2 puarantee over the transferred asser is measured ar the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required

to repay.
The Company has not derecognized any linancial asset.

Impairment of financial assets: In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (FCL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

P Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured ar amortised cost .. loans, debt securitics, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balance

P Financial assets thar are debt instruments and are measured az at FVTOC]

P Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

P Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another fnancial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 {referred to as ‘contractual revenue receivables” in these finandal
statements)

» Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

P Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

P Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

P All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changss in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recogninion of impairment loss on ather financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
these has been a significant increase in the credit msk since il recognition. I credit sk has: not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit rsk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit guality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
significant increase in credit dsk since initial cecognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifenme ECL are the expecred credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL i the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (Le., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash fows, an entity is required to consider:

P All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, éxtension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estmated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
mstrument

P Cazsh flows from the sale of collateral held or other eredit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms



As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its trade receivables. The provision matrix is bised on its historically abscrved default rares over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed, On that basis, the Company estimates the
following provision matrix at the reporting date:

Cureent  1-30days  31-60 days  61-90 days past due  More than 90 days
past duc past due past due

Diefault mate 0:15% 1.60% .00 6,605 10.60%
ECL mpatrment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the pedod is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head “other expenses” in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for vartous financial instruments & described below:

P Financial assets measured as ar amornised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, ie, 25 an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet The
allowance reduces the net cargyng amount. Uniil the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not redure
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

P Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheer, ie. as 2
liability.

P Debt mstruments measured at FVTOCE Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’
in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit osk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit nsk characteristies with the objective of facilitanng an analysts that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial asscts which are credit impaired on purchase / origination, The Company has made adequare
provision for doubtful debts and has not made any provision for ECL.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded deavative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument thar also includes a non-dervative host
contract —with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to 2 smndalone
deavative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the
contract 1o be modified according to a specified interest rate, financul mstrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other vadable, provided in the case of a
nonfinancial varable that the variable is not specific to a party w the contract. Reassessment only oceurs if there is
cither a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contans a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not
separate embedded denvatives. Rather, it applics the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire
hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded i all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and
cecorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closcly related o those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured ar fair value with changes in fair value reconised in profit or loss, unless designated as
effective hedging mstrumenes,

The Company's financial instruments are not derivative instruments,
Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities: Financial liabilities are classified, at mital recopnition

a P financial labilitis at fair value through profit or loss,
b loans and bmtm’ingﬁ.
c P payablcs
d P denvatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge
All financial labilities are recognised minially ar fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attrbutable transaction costs,
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts but not derivative financial instruments,



a payment to be made to seimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarintee contracts are recognised inivially as a
liability ar fair valoe, adjusted for transaction costs that are dircetly atteibutable to the issuance of the puasantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortsation.

xiv Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is dischargped or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different teoms,
or the wems of an existing liability are substantally modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective careying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

xv Reclassification of financial assers: The Company determines clissification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made For financial assets which are equity instruments and
fnancial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is 2 change in
the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The
Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes
which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the
business model occurs when the Company cither beging or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to it
operations. 1f the Company reclassifies financial assets; it applies the reclassification prospectively from  the
reclassification date which is the fiest day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Company does not restate any previowsly recognised jgains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or
interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised classification Accounting treatment

classificat
iomn

Amortized FVTPL Fair value 15 measured ar rechssification date. Difference berween previous
cost amortized cost and fair value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair valuc at rechassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. ETR i
calculated based on the new gross carrying amount.

Amortised FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification ‘date. Difference between  previous

cost amaortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCL No change in EIR due to
rechassification.

FYTOCI Amortized cost Fair value at rechssificarion date becomes its new amortised cost carrying

amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value,
Consequentdy, the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at

amortsed cost.
FV'TPL VIO Fair value at reclssification date becomes its new carrving amount. Mo other
adjustment s required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Azsets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss previously

recognized in OCH is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date,

The Company has not reclassified any financial instrument.

»vi Offsetting of financial instruments: Financial assets and financial labilines are offset and the net amount s reporred
in the standalone balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal righr 1o offset the recopnised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the labilites simultancously.

The Company has not offset any financial asset and financial liability.



svil Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting - Ind AS 109 & 32

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement: Dienvanve financial instroments are mitially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a dervatve contmet 35 entered into and are subsequently re-measured ar fair value.
Dierivatives are carred as financial assets when the fair value is positive and a2 financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative. The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a dedvatve under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the
receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the Company’s expected purchase, sale or usage
requirements are held ar cost.

Any gaing or losses arising from changes in the fair value of dedvatives are taken directly to profit or Joss, except for
the cffective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later rechissified to profit or loss when the
hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-fnancial asset or non-financial liabiliey,

For the purpose of hedge aceounting, hedges are classificd as:
P Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or hability or
an unrecognised firm commitment

P Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable 1o a
particular risk assocuted with a recognised asset or lbility or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk in an unrecognised fism commitment

P Hedges of 2 net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to
which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and steategy for undermking
the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undermbing hedyge,
the hodging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or tmnsaction, the nature of the rsk being hedged, hedge ratio
and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offscting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows artdbumble to the hedged nisk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achicving offsetting changes in fair value or cash Bows and are assessed on an on-
going basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for
which they were designated.

Hedpes thar meer the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:
i Fair value hedges
The change in the fair value of 4 hedging instrament is recognised in the statement of profic and loss as finance
costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the rizk hedged i recorded as part of the
carrying value of the hedged irem and 13 also recognised in the statement of profic and loss as finance costs,

For fair value hedges relating o items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to caroying value 5 amortised
through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge wsing the EIR method. EIR amartisation may
begn as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for chanpes
in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item iz derecognised, the unamartised fair value 15 recognised immediately i profit or loss. When
an unrecognised firm commitment i desigmated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the far
value of the firm commitment artributable to the hedged nsk is recognised as an asser or liability with 2
corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss,

The Company does not have interest rate swaps that are used as a hedge for the exposure of changes
in the fair value fixed rate secured loans.



222

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss,

Amounts recognised as OCI are transfecred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss,
such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs.
When the hedged irem is the cost of a non-financial assct or non-financial lability, the amounts recoygnised as
OCl are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or labulity.

IF the hedging instrament expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCT remains separately in couy
untl the forecast transaction occurs or the foreipn currency firm commitment is met,

The Company does not use forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency
risk in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity eontracts for its
exposure to volatility in the commodity prices, The incffective portion relating to foreign currency
contracts is recognised in finance costs,

Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for
as part of the net investment, are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised a5 OCI while any gaing or
losses relating to the ncffective portion are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal of the
foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recorded in equity s rechissified to the
statement of profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment).

The Company does not use a loan as a hedge of its exposure to foreign exchange risk on its
investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts,
interest rate swaps and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate

risks and commodity price risks, respectively.

v Loan processing fees: As required by Ind AS 109, loan processing fecs are amortized over the penod of the

respective loan,

Catﬁgoﬂuﬁnn of financial instruments

at 3lst March

Particulars As at 3st March|As

2018 2017
(i) Financial Asscts
Measured at amortised cost
Investments 284,95 28:4.96
Loans 20 584.06 2878284
Trade Recervables 2.663.88 T03.28
Cash and Cash Equivalents 243.01 3158607
(i) Financial Liabilitics
(a) Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 82.668.62 T8,670.20
‘Trade Payables 5,384.76 6,708.50
Other Finaneial Liabilines 62,798.96 67,966.83
Ind AS 33 - Earning Per share

¢ Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the perind attnbutable to equity
sharcholders (after deducting preference dividends and atmbutable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity sharcs are treated as a fraction of an equity share o the extent
that they are entitled to participate in dividends selative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding durdng the period is adjusted for cvents such as bonus issue,
bonus element in a rghts issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) thar have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.




For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the perod attributable to cquity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the pedod are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results are anti-dilutive,

223 Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Assct

v

v

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 1f any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. Such recovenble amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-gencrating unit’s (CGU) net selling
price and ity valoe in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGL exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is weitten down o it
recoverable amount.

In asscssing value in use, the estimated funure cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of money and the risks specific to the asset In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other avatable fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detiled budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
sepamately for each of the company's cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated, These budgers
and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer perinds, a long term growth mte is
caleulated and applied to project future cash fAows after the fifth year. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate i
caleulated and applied to project future cash Aows after the fifth year. To estimate cash Aow projections beyond
pericds covered by the most recent budgetsforecasts, the Company exteapolates cazh flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can' be justificd. In any case, this
growth rate does not exceed the Jong-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in
which the entity operates, or for the macket in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, mcluding impairment on inventories, are recognised m the statement of
profit and loss, except for properties previously rovalued with the revaluation surplus taken o OCL For such
properties, the impairment is recognised in OC] up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its cemaining useful life

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made ar each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previonsly recognized impaiement loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recopnized. The reversal is limited so thar the carnang amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined; net of depredation, had no
impairment loss been recogniced for the asset n prior years. Such reversal is recognieed in the statement of profit and
loss unless the asset is carned at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31st March and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of cach CGU {or Company of CGUSs)
which the goodwill selates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss 18 recognised. Impaioment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

Inmangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31st March at the CGU level, as
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate thar the carrying value may be impaired.

Ind A5 3696 permits the annual impaisment test for a CGU to which goodwill has been allocated to be performed at
any time dunng the year, provided it is at the same time each year. Different goodwill and intangible assets may be
tested ae different tmes.



224 Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset

w
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Provisions are recognised when,
a  the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
b it 35 probable thar an owtflow of rezources embodying economic benefits will be required to setle the
abligation and
¢ arcliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insumoce contract, the
reimbursement i recognised as a separate asser, bur only when the reimbursement is virtally certain,

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the tme value of money 15 material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of tme is recognised a8 a finance cost

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer.
Initial recogmition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.

Restructuring provisions are recognised only when the Company has a constructive obligation, which is when a detasled
formal plan identifies the business or part of the business concerned, the location and number of employees affected, o
detailed estimate of the assoctated costs, and an appropriate tmeline, and the employees affected have been notfied of
the plan's nin features.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constractive) 43 a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to serde the obligaton and a
reliable estimate can be made of the ameount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recopgmised as o separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtally cerain, The expense relating to a provision i presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

225 Ind AS 38 - Intangible Asset

i

Vil

As required by Ind AS 38.72, the Company has chosen the cost model as per Ind AS 3874 for measurement of
intangible assets. The Company has measured the cost of acquisition or construction of intangible assets in accordance
with Ind AS 38.24-38.71.

Intangible assers acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value ar the date of acquisition.

Inteenally penerated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure
15 reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incureed.

Followmng imitial recognition, mtangible assets are carded at cost less any accumulated amortsation and accumulared
impairment losses.

The useful lives of mmngible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there s an ndication that the intangible azset may be impaired.

The amortisation perod and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
lease ar the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future cconomic benefits embodied in the asser are considered to modify the amortisation penod or method, as
appropnate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates,

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives 1= recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite wseful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level: The assessment of indefinite life 15 reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life connnues to be suppormable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to fnite s made
on a prospective basis.

Gaing or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible asser dre measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asser and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
assct is derccognised.
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v

Vi

Research costs are expensed as mcurred,
Development expenditures on an individual project are recognized a5 an intangible asset when the Company can
demonstrate:

P The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset 2o that the asset will be available for use or sale

P Itz intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or scll the asset
P How the asset wall generate future economic benefis
P The availability of resources to complete the asset
P The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development
During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any
accumulated amornsation and accumulated impairrment losses:
Amortisation of the asser begins when development is complete and the assct 1= available for use.
Tt 15 amortised over the penod of expected future benefit.
Amortisation cxpensc is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expendinure forms part of carrying
value of ancther asset.

Ind AS 38 - Patents and licences

The Company makes upfront payments to purchase patents and licences. The patents are granted for a certiin period
by the relevant government agency with the option of renewal at the end of this penod.

Licences for the use of intellectual property are granted for certain periods depending on the speafic licences. The

i
licences may be renewed at lietle or no cost to the Company. As a result, those licences are assessed as having an
indefinite useful life,

i A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is, as follows:

Intangible Useful lives | Amortisation method used |Internally generated or acquired

Licences Indefinite  |No amortisation Aequired

Patents Finite Amortised on a straight-line basi{ Acquired
Development  [Finite Amortised on a  stmight-linef Internally penceated
costs basis over the pedod off

cxpected future sales from the
related project

228 Ind AS 40 - Investment Property

1

w

Investment properties are measured mitially ar cost, including tansaction costs. Subsequent 1o initial recognition,
mvestment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost mcludes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
critena are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at mtervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incorred.

The Company depreciares building component of investment property over 30 years from the date of oniginal
purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates the
building over estimated uschul lives which are different from the useful life preseribed in Schedule 1T to the Companies
Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives arc realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be vsed.

Though the Company measures ‘investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation pecformed by an aceredited
external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valustion Standards
Committee,

Investment propertics are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised
in its Indian GAAP financial statements as at the transition date, viz., 1st April 2015,



229 Ind AS 105 - Non-current assets held for sale & discontinued operations:
i The Company classifies non-current assets or disposal undertaking as "held for sale / distribution to owners” if their
carrying amounts are expected to be recovered principally through a sale / distribution rather than through contimuing
UsEC,
i The catena for held for sale/ diseribution classification is regarded met only when

a  the assers or disposal undertaking is available for immediate sale / distribution in its present condition, subject
only o terms thar are useal and customary for sales / distrbution of such assets {or disposal undertakings),

b its sale/ distribution is highly probable;

it will genuinely be 2old, not abandoned.

actions required to complete the sale / distrbution indicate thar it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale
[ distribution will be made or that the decision to sell / distribute will be withdrawn.

&on

¢ the appropoate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal undertaking),

f anactive programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),
g the asset (or disposal undertaking) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relaton o
its current fair value,
i the sale is expected o qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of dassification
it For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-cureent assets for other non-cusrent assets when the
exchange has commeecial substance.

v Non-current assets held for sale / for distribution to owners and disposal undertalings are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell/ distribute. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale
{distrbution are presented separately in the balance sheet.

v Property, plant and equipment and inwangible assets once classified as held for sale / distribution to owners are not
depreciated or amortised.

vi A disposal undertaking qualifies as discontinued operation if it 5 a component of an entiry that either has been
disposed of, or i classified as held for sale, and

P represents a sepanate major line of business or geographical arca of operations,

P is part of a single co-ordinated plan ro dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or

P iz a subsidiary acquired exclusively witha view to resale

vii. Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented a5 a single amount
as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company does not hold any non-current assets for sale or for discontinued operations.
23 Ind AS 113 - Fair Value Measurement
i The Company measures financal instruments, such as, dervatives at fair value at each balance sheer dare,
i Fair value is the price that would be received to scll an asset or pad to transfer a liability in an orderly ransaction
between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement s based on the presumption thar
the transaction to gell the asset or tansfer the lability takes place either:

» In the prncpal market for the asset or liability, or
P In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

iii The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

w The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

v A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability 1 generare cconomic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by sclling it to another market participant that would use the
asset i its highest and best use,

vi The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and For which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obscrvable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.



B

All assers and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the finanenl statements are categonsed within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpot that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpue that is significant to the fir value measurement i
unobservable

For assets and labilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurning basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing cateporisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole) at the end of cach reporting period,

The Company's Valuaton Committee deteemines the policies and procedures for both recurdng fair value
measurement, such as dedvative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at faic valoe, and for non-
recurnng measurement, such as assets held for distabution in discontinued operations. The Valuation Commitree
comprises of the head of the investment properties segment, heads of the Company’s internal mergers and acquisitions
team, the head of the risk management department, financial controllers and chief finance officer.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unguoted financial assets, and
significant lisbilitics, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the
Valuation Committee after discussion with and approval by the Company’s Audit Committee. Sclection cntena include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. Valuers are normally
rotated every three years. The Valuation Committee decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers,
which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting darte, the Valuanon Commiteee analyses the movements in the values of assets and lishilities which
are recquired to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Valuation
Committee verifies the major inputs applicd in the kitest valuation by agrecing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Valuation Committee, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and hability with relevant external sources 1o determine whether the change is reasonable.

O an interim basis, the Valeation Committee and the Company’s external valuers present the valuation resules to the
Audit Committee and the Company’s independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used
in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilitics on the basis of
the nature, charactenstics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.
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P Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
P Contingent consideration
P OQuantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
P Investment in unquoted equity shares (discontinued aperations)
P Property, plant and equipment under revaluanon maodel
P Investment propertics
P Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)
» MNon-cash distribution
xv The Company has not elected to apply the portfolio exception under Ind AS 113.48. If an entity makes an
accounting policy decision to use the exception, this fact is required to be disclosed, as per Ind AS 113.96.

Material changes reflecting the Financial Position of the Company

There are procecdings going on agamnst the company under various liws such as The Mahamshira Protection of Interest of
Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) — Pune, Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 and othe
economic laws. Various agencies have moved apainst the Assessee Company and its directors, vie, Directorae of
Enforcement (EDY), Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO) and other apencies. The original documents/apreements has
been seized by ED and are not available for carrying out necessary audit.

It it pertinent to note that the Resolution Professional made all the practical and reasonable efforts from time to tme to
facilitate the information / data from the officials of the Company. In relation to the preparation of the Financal
Statements of the company and also the mformation required by the auditors for the pumpose of carrving our the audit of
the financial starements of the Company. It is to be noted that the financial statements for the FY 17-18 as well as the
mformation provided to the auditors for the purpose of audit of the same, pentun to the period prior to the appointment
of the Resolution Professional and therefore and therefore, while facilitating the collection and dissemination of the said
information, the Resolution Professional has relied upon and assumed the accuracy / veracity of data / information
provided by the officials of the Company, suspended Directors and long term consultants and the records of the Company
made available to the RP and has assumed data in conformity with the applicable laws and and present a tue and fair view
of the position of the Company as of dates and for the period indicated therein. The RP has not personally verified the
Information provided by the officials of the Company and has placed confidence in the data/information provided. The
financial statements have been signed by the RP as no promoter director is present. Accorngly, the RP should be absolved
from the accuracy, veracity and sufficiency or completeness of such Information.

Readers and users of the statements are advised to do their due diligenee before amving at any conclusions. The RP has
signed the Fmancials Statements to facilitate the CIRP process and to facilitate the statutory requirements without any
liability of the same.



D. 5. EULEARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN @ L4201 PN 199 PLC063340

Motes to Standalone Financial Starements for the vear ended

As at 3st Mar® 2018
{(Amt. in Rs. Lakhs)

A at st Mar 2017
(Ame. in Rs, Lakhs)

9.1

9.2
9.3

10.1

10.2

Mon- Current Investments
Unguoted

I in Equite I i Subsidias

DSK Infra Pvt, Lod.

20,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.10/- each fully paid L LIRLL 20,000
L i Eiee 1 in Other € i
DSK Global Education aod Research Lad,
133,197/ 733,197 Equity Shares of Re.10/- each fully paid 73320 73,320
I in sk inC ixk Bkl
1,000 shares of Re50/- cach fully paid in Sheee Sadgur Jangli Maharaj Sahakan Bank 11,500 0500
Led.
10 shares of R 100/~ each fully pad in Janata Sahakan Bank Lid. .01 010
10 shares of Rs.50/- each fully paid in Mahalsxmi Co-Op. Rank Lid. (0L05 10
4,080 shares of Re.25/- each fully paid in Greater Bombay Co-Op, Bank Ll 1.020 1.020
20,000 shiares of Re. 25/- each fully paid in Kalyan Janata Sahakan Bank Led, 5.000 S.000
100 shares of Rs 100+ each fully paid in Pune Sahakari Bank Lid. 0,108 0,100
30,000 shares of Re 100/~ cach fully paid in Sangh Urban Co-Op. Bank Lad. 5,000 500K}
Total Non-Current Investments 284.95 284.96
Additional Disclosurcs
Aggregare amount of Cunted Tnvestments *
Market Valee of Quoted nvestments 3 E
Aggregate amount of Unguoted [nvestments 28495 284
As required by Ind AS 27.10, the company has chosen the cost model for measurement of earrying value of all investment,
All the investment in subsidiary and associates ase measured st coat as per Ind AS 27 Separate Financial Statements
All othier imvestments are carried ar amortized oot
Loans - non-current
(2) Dreposits unsecured, considered good
i With Rebated Parties 7653 T6.53
i With Others 827 26T.00
(b} Loans ro Rebited Parties, unsecercd
i Considered good 5,062.62 4.895.81
i Considered doubeful 6,576.4% 6,197.05
i Allowance for bad and doubriul debes <4, 713,84 4, TIA60
Tuotal Loans 7,280,046 6,722.79

Diebis due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them cither sevenlly or jointly with any other person’ or debts due by
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a dircetor of 3 member.

Loans or deposits to related partics have not been verified due to lack of I;‘!Eer confirmations

affected by the changes in the credit dsk of counterparties.

Loans are non derivative fnancial assers which penerate a fixed or varfable interest income for the Company. The caerying value may be

Other Non-Current Assets

(a) Cenvat Credit 812.16 858,33
() GST Input Tax Credit 11.02 -
fc) GST Reverse Charges ITC 302 .
{d) Foreign Currency in Hand 246 285
(g} Socety Maintenance 19285 192,75
{6 1CICI Bank Debt Service Recovery Amtunts . 200.51
Total Other Current Asscis 1,021.51 1,314.43

of the Govemnment portals inspite of various representations.

Credits available from GST or Cenvat are not verificd from retums filed by the management for the period due o back of login credentials

|ierecoverable as the pozsession has been availed.

Sociery Maintenance paid shows the mamtenance paid on behalf of the customers for the Mlats posscssed by them. The same seems to be




Balince in foreign currency possesses the balance in- the forex eard held by the Company, The same was oot avalble for verheation
hence, the amount resembhes the sccounting dara.

1 | Inventories
(z) Constructions Materials 24594 245.04
(b} Waork-in-Progress 1,55,54042 61,981, 54
(c)  Finished Tenements 1,381.64 1.381.64
Total Inventorics 1,57, 168.00 1,63,609.12
11.1 [Inventorics were not wholly physically verificd by the management and henee the same is relied on the valoaton done last year exeepe for
the change in WIP inventory that reflects additional cost incurred or sale of few projects pertaming to kst year accounted for in the current
year.
1.2 | Mode of valuation : See note to financil statements
12 | Trade Receivables unsecured, considered good.
{a) Outstanding for less than six months . 012
B Outstanding for 4 pennd exceeding six months 2,663,858 T03.16
Total Trade Reccivables 2,663.88 T03.28
121 | Trade Receivables ure non-intetest bearing
13 | Cash and Cash Equivalents
(z)  Balances with Banks
i Earmarked Balances with Banks 0.00 553.70
i Current Account Balances with Bank 2115 2. T05.87
#i- Balances with Banks to the extent held as margin money or secunity against 15131 233.99
the borrowings, pearntess, othér commitments, ete.
v Deposits with erginal maturity of less than twelve months 7035 50.64
)  Cashon Hand 0.20 377
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 24301 3,386.97
13.1 | The details of plede of the fixed deposits hebd by the Company are based oo last year's veaficanion
13.2 | The balances of bank recorded above are based on the statements avadlable with the management which are oot fully updated and]
available.
14 | Loans - current
Conadered doubtful
(1) Advances to related partics, unsecured, considered good 0,546 T23.37
(b)  Advance to creditons 107026 -
() Other Advances 20,333.18 21,536.08
Total Loans 22,304.00 22,060.05
14.1 | Loans and advances due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severaily or jointly with any other person or
amounts due by firms or private companies respectivety in which any director is a partner or a director or 2 member
14.2 | Loans are non derivative financial assets which penerate 2 fixed or vanable interest ineome for the Company. The carrying value may be
affected by the changes in the credit nsk of counterparties.
15 | Equity Share Capital
] Authorised Capieal
5,00,00,000 Exuity shares of Rs. 10/- each 5000000 35,0000
b)  lssued, subscribed and paid up capital
258,010,008 Equity shares of Re. 10/- each 258010 2,580, 10
anm-,frishln attached to equity shares
15.1 [The company has only one cliss of equity shares having par value of Re. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
|per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian ruppes. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
appeoval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual General Meeting,
15.2 |In the event of liquidstion of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o recerve remaining assets of the company, after

distnibution of all preferentail amounts, The distabution will be in proposation to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

€ Mumber of shares isssed, subsedbed and fully pasd 258.01 25801
dy Mumber of shares issued, subscobed and fully paid . .
) Par valoe per share 1000 1000

f) Reconciliation of the number shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of
the reporting period
i Shares outsianding at the beginning of the réporting period 25801 258.01
i shares outstanding ot the end of the reporting pecsod 2580 25801
il Equity shares capital ar the end of the reporting peniod 2,580.10 2580010
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16.1

16.2

Shares in the company held by each sharcholder holding more than 5 per cent shares specifiang the number of shares held

(#) DS Kulkarni
Number of shares Gl 6K
Percentage 25.2:4% 23 20%
by D Kulkami
Number of shares 49,04 49006
Percentage 19.01%% 1901%
(¢}  Ashok Parmar
Number of shares IRTR 3878
Perceniage 15.03%% 15.03%
{d} Chander Bhana
Mumber of shares 20,00 20000
Percentage 7.75% 7.75%
(e} Asha Bhara
Mumber of shares 19.50 19.50
Percentage T.50% 7.50%
() Shirsh Kulkarni
Mumber of hares 15.20 1520
Percentage T.56% 7.56%
The Company does not have any shares reseeved for 1ssue under options
Oither equity
(a) Securities Premutm réserve M) 822 AB22TM
(B}  Debenture redempiion reserve 2,007 87 200787
{c}  General reserve 953.70 953,70
{d)  Rersined carnings 446,81 6,596, 73
Total other equity 33,337.48 4038101

MNamre and purpose of the reserves
Securities Premium
Becurities Premium presents shares issued at premium less share issue expenses. The reservie is wtilised in accordance with the provisiosn

of Companses Act, 2013.

Particulars As at st Mar” 2018 | As at 3st Mar' 2007
Opening Balance 3082 s
Add: Premium on equity shares issued . B
Closing Balance 30,822.71 305271

Debenmare Redemption Reserve

The company has issued redeemable pon-convertible debentuses. Accordingly, the companies (share Capital and debentures) Rules, 2014
(as amended), require the company to create DRR out of profits of the company available for payment of dividend. DRR is required 1o be
created for an amount which is equal to 25% of the value of debentures issued. The DRR s required to be credited over the life of
debentures.

According to the companiés (Share capital and debentures) Rules, 2014 (as amended), o company should on or before the 30th day of]

April in each year, invest or deposit, @ sum which will not be less than fifteen percent of the amount of its debentures maturing during the
year encling on the 3ist day of March of the next year, However, the company has been unable 1o make any such depost/ investment.

Particulars As at 3lst Mar' 2018 | As ac 31sc Mar® 2017
Opening Balance 2,007.87 2007.87
Add: Addittonal debenture redeemed - .
Clasing Balance 2,007 87 2,007.87
General Reserves

The Company has transferred o poction of Net Profits of the Company before declanng Dividends to General Reserve pursuant o the
cardier provision of The Companies Act, 1956, Mandatory transfer 1o Generl Reserve, i not required under the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars As at 31st Mar' 2018 | As ar 3lsg Mar' 2017
Opening Balance 953,70 953,70
Add: Addinons made - -
'Cluains Balance 953,70 953.70




16.4 | Retained Eamings
Retained camings sepresents the accumulated losses that the Company has il date,
Particulars An ut 31se Mar® 2008 | As at 3st Mar' 2017
Operiing Babance 6.596.47 715710
Add: Met profit/ (loss) for the vear ST043.26 500,72
'Cluﬂ‘:ng Balance -446.81 6,596.47
16.5 | Distnbution made and proposed
Cash dividents on cquity shares declased and paid:
Final dividend for the year ended -
DDT on final dividend -
Proposed dividends on Eguity shaces

Final dividend for the year ended -

DT on final dividend = .
Proposed dividends on equity shares are subjeet to approval ar the annwal general meeting and are not recognised as a liabilty (including
DT therean) as at 31st March.

16.6 | The eompany has not made any non-cash distrbution 1o its shares holders during both the years,
17 | Non-current borrowings sccured
{a)  Listed secured Redemable Mon-convertible Debentures

{f  Option 1 517220 517219

(i) Option 11 234255 234255

i) Option 101 180.41 148.58

fiif)  Option IV 3,442.60 3,442.60
{B)  Progect termn loans from banks

(%  1CICT Bank Vedant PTL 1,000, 0 1,000,000

(if) Stare Bank of India Dream ety PTL 1257981 1212081

(1) ICICT Housing Finznce Co Anandghan FTL 7.946.22 8,000, 86

(v} Syndicare Bank Dream city PTL 1066700 TAZT.00

{v) Union Bank of India Dream City PFTL 6,202 86 6,052.86

[vi) Bank of Maharashtra Deeam City FTL 6,292.00 6,052.00

(v} TDBI Bank Dream City FTL 472212 4.538.00

(wiii} Vijaya Bank Drean City PTL 1,768.41 1,513.00

() Indiabulls Housing Finance Limated 4,996.45 4,596.91
(e  Corporre term boans from banks

{1} Sangali Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd 498 13245

@) Tata Capital Led. 71353 71349

(tif)  The Kalyan Janata Sahakari Bank 133672 1,015.50
(d) Cooperative term boans from Financial institutions

(i} Bnay Finanace Lid 1,403,351 1,360.85

()  Aditys Birls Finance Lid 936,47 553,60

(i) STCI Finance Lrd 268945 2,680.45
() Vehicle term loans from banks

(i HDFC Bank Lud, 1.25 L25
()  Vehicle term loans from financial institution

(% Toyota Financial Services Lad. 707 07

(@ Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid 058 .58
{#®  Term Loans from financial institutions secured by pledige of promotoss’ shares

i) TPune Safety Vault LLP 50,00

(1) Ruia Knowledge & Research Institute Prr. Lid 25.00

{iil) SKS Fincap Pyr. Lid 156.14 150,00
Total non-current borrowings secured 71,929.13 69,0360
Unsecured Borrowings

fa)  Deposite from public 200 200

(B} Loan from directors .34

(e} Loan from sharcholders 135
Totwml non-current borrowings 72,088.51 69,033.60

171 [Right tor reissue: Subject to the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 where the company has fully redeemed any NCDs, the Company
shall have, & shall be deemied abways to have had, the nght to keep such WCDs in effect without extinguishment thereof, for the purpose
of resale or re-tssiie & in cxercising such nght, the company shall have, & shall be deemed always to have had, the power to reesell or re-
1asue such NMCDs either by reselling or re-issuing the same NCDs or by tesuing other NCDs, in accondance with  the applicable rules &
regulations,




T2

Interest oa NCD Option | is assumed to be payable quartedy @ 12.50% pa. as that of kst year. In the case of NCD holders who are
wormen, senior citizens, sharcholders, servicemen, ex-servicemen of DSK Group emplovess & who are the orginal allotiecs of the NCDs,
the rate of interest will be increased by 0.25%. Such addinonal mate of interest will ocase in the event of transfer of the NCDs: The NCDsy
due to be redeemed on 06,09/ 2017 have vet not been redeemed.

7.3

Interest on WD Opuion [T s NIL. The NCDs will be redeemed on 06/03/ 2020,

17.4

Interest on NCD Option 11T §s assumed o be payable yearly @ 12.65% pa. as that of ke year, In the ease of NCD holders who are
woren, senior atizens, sharcholders, servicemen, ex-serncemen or DSK Group employees & who are the odjinal allottees of the NCDs,
the rate of interest will be mereased by 0.25%, Such addinonal mte of interest will cease in the event of mansfer of the NCDs. Unider this
eption payment of princpal togerther with interest accrued on the residual face vabue will be paid a5 unden

Sr |Panial Redemption dates % to Face Value

1 |6ith September, 2016 10000
2 {6ch Seprember, 2007 15,00
3 |6th September, 2018 i
4 [dth Seprember, 2019 2500
5 |6th September, 2020 25.00

17.5

Interest on NCD Option IV is assumed to be payable monthly @ 12.75% p.a. as that of last year, Tn the case of NCD holders who are
women, senlor citizens, sharcholders, servicemen, ex-servicemen ar DEK Group employees & who are the orginal allottees of the NCDs,
the rate of intereat will be increased by 0.25%. Such addinonal rate of interest will ecare in the event of transfer of the NCDs The MCDy
will be redeemed on 06,/09,/2021

17.6

|tand aleng with present and future structures thereon along with other project teom lenders consortium Banking). The collateral security iz

The primary security for State Bank of India Deeam City PTL i3 pari pasu 1st changes by way of degistred mortgage of specified progect

part pasu 19t charge by way of registered mortgage of specified land, In addition, the project loan is secured by the personal gunantee of Me.
125 Kullearni & Mr. Shinsh Kulkarni

17.7

The Primary secunty foe the Syadicare Bank (Gold Leaf) PTL iz regtatered morgage of sepeified Peojeer and along with present and future
structures thereon. In addinon, the project loan is secured by the personal guarantes of Mr. DS Kulkami & Mr. Shinsh kualkani

17.8

The Primary security for Syndicate Bank Dream City PTL is par pasa e change by way of registered mongage of specified projeet land]
along with present and future structures thereonwith other progect term lenders (Conzortium Banking), The Collateral security i pan pasu)
1st chanpes by way of registered mortgage of specified land Tn addition. the project loan is secured by the pessonal guarantes of Mr
D5 Kuolkami & Mr. Shirish Kuolkami

1.9

The Primary security for Bank of Mabarashtea Dream City PTL is pari pasu 154 charges by way of segstered mortgage of speeified project
land along with present and future strectures thereonwith other project. term lenders (Consortinm Banking), The Collateral security s pari
pasu 1st charges by way of registered mortgage of specified land In addition. the project loan iz secured by the personal guarantes of Mr,
0.5 Kullarn & br. Shirish Kulkami.

17.10

The primary security for ICICT bank Vedant PTL ix regastered mortgage of specified project land along with present and furure strucnures
theron, The collareral security is registered mortgage of specified land along with present & Ffuture structures thereon and a charge on the
receivables of specified projects, In addinen, the project loan i secured by the pemsonal gumntee of Mr DS Kulkarmi & Mre. Shiosh
Kulkarn:.

171

The Primany security for the ICICT HFC Led. Anandghan PTL s registered mortgage of specified Project land along with present and|
Furure structures thepeon The collateral sceunty i registred mostgage of specified land along with present & future structure there on and
hypyothecation of project receivables. In addition, the project loan s secured by the personal guarantee of Me. D5, Kulkaeni, Mr. Shisigh
Kulkami & Mrs, H.D. Kulkarni. DSK Global Education and Research Limited i eo gurantor to the tune of recervables from the project in ]
liew of consideration for relinguishing of development rights of part of project land,

17.12

The Primary secunty for IDBI Bank Dream City PTL i3 pari pasu 150 charges by vway of regrstered morigags of specified project land along)
with present and future structures therconwith other project term lenders (Comeortium Banking). The Collateral security is parl pasu 1
chiarges by way of registered mortgage of specified land and hypyathecation of project receivables. In addition, the project loan is secured]
by the personal guarantee of Mr. 105 Kulkarni & Me. Shinsh Kolkarni

17.13

The vehicle term loan from Toveta Financial Services i seeured by hvpothecation of specific vehieles

17.14

The vehicle term losa from Kotk Mahindra Prime is secured by hypothecation of specific vehicles.

17.15

The vehicle term loan from HDFC Bank 18 secused by hypothecation of specific vehicles.

17.16

The clums from the banks have been duly venfied and recorsded the balanees backed by valid evidences.

1717

The loan from SKS Fmeap Pt Lol is secured by pledge of 10,00,000 (P, Y, 10,00,000) Equity shares of the Company held by che
Company's promoters.

17.18

The loan from Ruia Knowledge & Research Insttute Pavate Limited is secured by pledge of 150,000 (P. Y. 1,50,00) Equity shares of the
Company held by the Company's promoters.

1.8

{Company's promoters

The boan from Pune Safety Vaolt LPP is sceured by pledge of 2,170,000 (P, Y. 210,000). Equity shares of the Company held by the

17.20 [The Company has accepted deposits from the shareholders without complying with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013




18 | Deferred tax lahilities (net)
The deferred tax ability compases the effect of the following
T, resulting from timimg difference between book depreciation and tax depreciation 4268 42.67
Total Deferred tax liabilities (et} 4268 4267
19 | Other non-current liabilities
{(a} Deposts from subsidiary 2500 14522
(b)  Odther deposits 8796 2510
(e} Advance from debtors 1,1TR62 -
Total other non-current liabilities 209157 170.32
19.1 | The deferred tax Bability/aeset has not been considered for the year due to uncertunty of & guing congern of the buginess.
192 | Deposits from Subsidiary are not venfied due to lack of confirmations from the thind parties
20 | Current bormowings secured
Werking capital limits from banks
1 Bank of Maharazhatra 3044.21 2.219.80
2 The Kalan Janata Sahakari Bank Lid. 48185 58.07
3 Punjab Mational Bank - 40795
4  State Hank of India 322195 3,287.04
Total current bormowings secured 6,748.01 6,062,586
Current borrowings secured
Inter comaorate deposits
1 Ambiance Ventures Estate & Dev Prt Led GRL19 G 55
2 Seksana mdustoes Pyt Led. 306,000 306,068
3 Iresco Electncals Pet Lod 7569 T3.70
4 Astaric Gases Limited 28045 278.81
5 Bombay Mercantile & Learing Co Ltd 200 .
6 Metworth Portfolio and Finance Pyt Lid 5.00 5.0
7 MK lnvestment Pyt Lid 25400 -
8  Sumako Chemo Ind Per Led, 300,98 204,000
9 Tectl Chemicals and hydro Power Lid an TR2)
16 Vibmnt Global Capital Led 156.44 152.14
11 Bhavnagar Oil Mill Prt. Ltd. 15.00 150000
12 Citric India Led. 183,064 104.28
13 Patodia Forgings and Gears Ld 27351 256,00
14 Saksena Opticles Py Lad, 10,00 1000
15 The Saseria Bisvaan Sugar Factory Lod. 31.86 31.86
1y Shn Krishna Rice & Ol Mills Pet. Ltd. 1000 HLO0
17 Tradelink Exim Pyt Lud T T.00
18 Shashi Hag agencies 3200 2200
19 Sakseria Behta Sugar Factory Lod. 6500 6540
A Rajgarhia Leasing & Financial Services Pet. Led. 281.00 281.00
21 Shashi Dhawal Hydmlic Pvt. Lid 10000 100,001
22 Rove Marketing Pyt Led, 205,00 205.00
23 Gind Tex Py Led. 10600 10063, O
24 Patodia Glass mdustries 267.10 250.00
25  Indi Ener Gen Lid . 1KLY
26 Honest Agencics Pyt Lid 012 L
Faridabad Paper Mill Led 0K 90,00
28 Adisun Exports Prrlid. 25.00 -
29 AMS garments Pve Lad. 50.51 4106
3 Indiz Ener Gen Pyt Ltd TARLOH 12.00
31 Ruia Fabrics Pt Led 310 310
32 Three Roses Oxygen Pyt Lid 400N 4000
Total current bormowings secured 3,831.80 3,573.83
Current borrowings secured 10,570,851 9,636,460




20,1 [The primary security for the Bank of Mahamshira cash credit bmit i hypotheeation of stock and debtors of encumbrance free projects.
The collateral security is by way of eguitable mortmipre of gpecified present immovable properties. T addition, this cash eredit limit iz
Jsecured by the personal guarantee of Me DL 5 Kolkami & Mrs H. D2 Kolkamni amd corporate guamntee of Ascent Promoters &
Developers P Lid., Growrich Agro-forestery Pyt Lid. & Holy Land Agro-forestery Pet. Lid, & Sapphire Promioters & Developers Pt
Lod

202 [The overdrafr from Bank of Maharashtra is secured by pledge of term deposit receipts:

203 [There is no primary security for the Mortgage Overdralt limit from Kalyan Janam Sahakar Bank Led: The collateral security is registered
maortgage of certain mmenable propertice. In addition, being a property owner guarantor & co-applicants for this loan are Mfs D 8
Kulkami & Coude D, 5. Kullarm & Associates. Personal Guarantes of Shei [0 5. Kolkarmi and Mr, Shirizh Kuallami.

20.4 | The overdraft from Syndicate Bank is secured by pledge of term deposit receipis.

20.5 |The overdraft from Punpb Nanonal Bank is secured by pledge of term deposit eceipis.

20.6 |The primary security for the Stare Bank of Indin project specific cash credit limit for developement & construction is registered morigage
of land slong with present & futuree strocture thereon In addition, this loan i3 seoured by the personal guarantes of Me. . 5. Kulkami &
Mr. & I). Kulkarni

21 |Trade Payubles

(a) Relued Parties 47115 31330
]  Other Parnes 4.913.61 ,305.20
‘Total Trade Payables 5,384.76 £,708.50

211 | The chiims made by the creditors have been duly verified and secorded the balances backed by valid evidences.
21.2 |Trade payables & all Halilibes are non-miercst-beaning, unless specified othersize in the contract.

22 |Other Financial Liahilitics

(2) Current mamurties of long-term debr
{1} Interest accrued but not due on Debentures 230181 111143
() Listed Secured Redemable NCDs Option 11 . 31.83
(i) Project term loans from banks

1 Indiz Bulis Housing Finance Madhukosh TTL - 1.517.95
(v} Corporate term boans from banks
1 Sangli Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd, - 8417
2 The Kalyan Janats Sahakan Bank > 32281
(¥) Corporate term lnans from Anancial institotions
1 Bapj Finance Lt - 42,46
2 Aditya Birla Finance Ltd - 62045
(B)  Unpaid / unclaimed poblie deposits 1.487.30 1,503,790
{c) Interest Payable-Subvention Scheme 27798 -
(d) Interest on FI¥ pavable 208,86 21365
(g}  Advance ggainst tenements ( plots 54,0078 G0,458.45
(f) Inuerest accrued bur not due on boreovwangs 4,513.23 2,055.84
Total Other Financial Liabilities 62,798.96 67,966,53

221 [The details of mostgages of the assets held by the Company and the secured NCDs are disclosed above
22.2 | The mterest pavable to Tata capital Housing Finance Led On subvention scheme is secured by mortpage of specified land.
23 [Other current liabilities

(a) Unclaimed doadends 13.37 13.38
by Sumutory Rabilies 1,805.49 187154
() Other labilities - 3,675.86
Towml other current Habilities 1,908,587 5,562.78

231 [The balance of dividend unclaimed for Y (9-10 has not been transferred to IEPF fund as per the provisions of See 124 of the Companics
Acz, 2013




23.2 |The statutory labifities have not been paid ull date and the same is relied on the sccounting records mamtained by the manapement.
Due to bick of login credentials svailable, the liabilitics due to the govemnment have not been verified inspite of various representatiuns.

24 |Provisions
{n) Provision for cxpenses 156,95 655.48
() Provision for employes benefits 93327 -
(£) Development expenses payabies 302241
{d)  Income tax provisions {net) 350.93 54318
‘Total Provisions 4,502 56 1,198.66
24.1 |Provisions for expenses inchudes the audit fees payable and have been reconded after duly veryifying the claims received by various)
creditors.

24.2 |Vagous income ax refunds are visible in Form 26A% but the same has not been received by the company. Hence the same is assumed o
be adjusted against the previous demands outstanding as disclosed in the Contingent Habality.

25 |Contingent Lisbilitics not provided for:

1 CGuarantee is respect of secured loans obtained by another company 10, DML KN 10,0060, 00
Balanee of securcd loans as at end of year 815279 B15279

2  Guarantee to Government Authoritics TBO.40 THOL40

3 Tax Matcrs under appeal 1511912 1,304.02

4 Cazes filed agamnar the company 339.88 330.58

5  Cenvat credit availed BiZ16 .
Total at the end of the mponin! period 25.204.35 10,667.09

Mote: The details of contingent labilities have been sustained to be same of previous year in absence of any evidence.

In addition to the above, the Cenvar Credit availed in non-current assets is contingent liability as the Company is into liquidation theough NCLT)
and the same shall not be obtained instead paid to the government authonty. Bank guarantee to the extent of Rs. 1,00,00,00,000 and mcome tax
liahility tos the extent of Rs. 1,37,25,10,306 has been dischosed to the extent of the claims received by the respective authortics and liahility visible
on the Income tax porral.




Motes 1o Standalone Finaneial Statements for the year ended As at As at
31st March 2018 315t March 2017 {Ami
(Amt in Lakhs) in Lalkhs)
26 |Revenue from operations
(2} Revenue from Company other than a finance company
1) Revenue from incomplete projects - 5,136.00
(i) Sale of finished tenements - 1,050.25
(i} Sale of land & Development rights 6,901.97 3,600.51
(iv) Contract receipts - 44.40
{b)  Other operating revenue 8.58
'Tolal Revenue from operations 6,901.97 9,846,053
26,1 [Sale of incomplete projects has not been recognised due to lack of evidences in order to denive revenue as per IND AS 18,
26,2 [There have been fow sale of finished trnements but it s not backed by any ageeements [ evidences. Die to laick of documentation,
sale value is unrecopnised and not accounted for in the books.
26,3 |Revenue from varous projects wholly sold to the third parties have been accounted for based on various documents as follows:
1. Project DSK Vedant has been sold to Pro Infra Developers LLP for which the sale has been executed on 15/01/2018 via sales
agreement where Pro Infra was to repay the Project loan taken from 1CIC] Bank by the Company. The same shall not be repaid by the]
Company from the consideration to be received by the party.
2. Project Garden Enclave has been sold 1w Remonesa Enterprise LLP for which the sale has been executed on 31/03/2007 wia sales
agreement which was not recorded in previows year hence, the same 15 recorded in the current year,
3. Project DSK Vishwa Phaze VI hag been sold ro M/s. MNyan Housing for which the sale has been execated on 15/03/2017 via
sales agreement which was not recorded in previous year hence, the same is recorded in the current year. The sales agreement does not
specify the propornon of sales consideration of the varous co-owners and hence for accounting the sales valug, reliance is placed on
the order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 13th March 2018,
4. Project Daya Shama Shanti has been sold to SBI Employees Co-op Heg Soc which has been recorded based on the Form 26A5
where the Transferee has deducted TDS u/fs 194-1A in the yvear of sale.
27 |Other Income
(1) Rent Income 108.92 91.86
b} Income from subsidiaries 63518 64941
(e) Commission/Brokerage - £40.03
(dy Interest on fixed deposits with bank 2052 81.34
(¢} Orher Interest 1.42 102
(f  Onher receipts 348 220
(&) Gain on Foreign currency exchange 369 -
(h) Amounts wntten back 81.40
Total at the end of reporting period E54.60 L665.93
27.1 |Due to lack of lnterest statements available by the management, interest on vanious deposits including deposits from banks have been
recorded based on Form 26A5.
28 |Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

(a) Land & Development Rights - 55.00
(B Sub-Contractor's Charges 168.22 3,293.14
ic) Other development expenses 54216 19,116.11

ﬁ'ﬂtiﬂ Land & / or development expenses 5,210.38 22,464.25




29.

30.1

30.2

3

Increase/ (Decrease) in inventories of finishes tenements & wip
{a) Finished tenements

Opening 1,381.64 4.150.79
Less : Closing (1,381.64) (1,381.64)
(b Work-in-progress
Cipening 1,61,981.54 1.44,162.27
Less : Closing {1,55,540042) (1,61,981.54)
Total increase [Ell:cﬂ:ﬂc} in inventorics of finishes tenements & wip 644112 {15,050.12)

Inspite of varous sale of finished tencments, the same is not recorded due to hick of documentation

or sale value with thef

MEAEAZETEnt

Employee Benefits expenses
(a) Balanes, wapges, boous eic 410.92 850033
) Contbution to provident & other funds 33 8.1
(¢} Director’s cemuneration - 1.94
(d) Staff welfare 3.72 4229
(e} Director’s sitting fees - 10.60

Total employee Benefits expenses 447.94 983.48 )

Salaries to staff/employees have been accounted for tll the month of January' 2018 based on the employee dewls available |
|provision are made 6ll Mar' 19 based on the employee claims received by the management.

company and receive the said money,

Directors have not been paid any remuneration in the current year with the fact that they are not in a positon o work for the

Office & admin expencse

Total office & admin expenese

(1) Professional expenses 19.34 330.21
b  Postage, Telephone & Telegram 14.30 48.40
{c) Rent expenses 943 306,29
{dy Rares & Taxes 12.03 1285
{¢) Repars and maintenance 4.20 5742
(fy Printing & stationery 1.67 2390
(@) Legal charges 1.78 43
{h) Cooveyance and foreign travel 18.26 60.52
{i) Electicity expenses 3100 3846
) Office expenses A73 26.80
&) Miscellineous expenses . 1270
M Inodieect taxes .44 9.57
(m) Lisnng fees - 7.29
{n) Subscription 1:28 G40
(&) Insurance 477 92.74
ip) Inteenal audit fees 1.50
(g) Company sudit fees - B.80
(f) Tax awdit fees - 1.00
{5) Securty charges 1.88 2.89
{t) Other admin expenses 1091 #.55

135.02 973.58

of documentation / detaled evidences for that perod.

Various periodic expenses have been booked for part of the year and vaiorus other expenses have not been accounted for due to lack




32 |Selling expenscs
{a) Adwvertisement Lah FB0.62
(b} Salez Promotion 315 31.19
(€} Domestc Travel Expenses 10.09 141,09
(d) Fofegn tavel expenses 1.14 69.87 _
{e) Domestic exhibiton expenses T9.57
(B  Dooations 0.05 0.25
{g) Other selling expenzes 53.55 79.22
Total selling expenses 63,43 78151
33 |Finance Costs
{2} Interest on deposits & loans 1,218.31 LAk ]
(b} Interest to financial mstinitions 262.71 4575
()  Interest to banks 32208 130.46
{d) Other financial expenses 3107 91.57
Total finance Costs 1,860.17 645.71
311 |Interest from various banks have been recorded based on the loan statements available with the management.
3 |Depreciation & Amortization expenses
(a) Depreciation expenses 616.25 595.50
(B} Amortzation expenses 3047
Total depreciation & Amortization expenses 616.25 625,97
35 |Other Expenses
() (Profit) / Loss on sale of assets 20.53 (2.14)
[Total other expenses 20,53 (2.14)
3 |Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
(@) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 45.24
(b)  Amount spent dunng the year .
'The Company is not eligible to spend part of the amount for the purpose of CSR as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
| Total Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
37 |Eamings per share(EPS)

Eamings per share 15 calculated in accordance with the Ind AS 33
Particuburs

Profir after tax (in lacs)

Weighted average number of Equity shares
Mominal value of Equity shares

Basic and Diluted eamings per share

{7,043.28)
2,58,01,008.00
10,00

108.84
2,58,01,008.00
1000

0.42




D. 5. Kulkami Developers Lid.
CIN: LAS201PNI1991PLCOG3340

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31-Mar-18]  31-Mar-18]  31-Mar17|  31-Mar-17
Rs. in Lacs Rs in Lacs | Rs in Lace | RsoinlLacs
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
1 Met Profic before Tax & Exirordinary [tems (7.043.25) 8042
Adfestrents o reconcile PBT & nef cash fows:
i Provision for doubtful advances
i Provision foe diminution n value of investments
it Depreciation 61625 62597
w Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Asscts 2053 [2.14)
v Inperest Expenditure 1,803.11 548,14
vi Inceest & Dividend Receved {21.94) 241795 gram] 108954
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes {4,625.33) 1,178.96
2 Warking rapifal adiutmenty
i Increase (Decrease) in Short Term Bomowings 043,12 (2813.64)
i Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilitics (3,653.91) 787138
fi Inerease (Decrease) in Short Term Peovisions 3.303.90 [1,788.58)
iv Inceease (Decrease) in Other Financial Lisbilies (5,167.87) 19,065.52
v Increase (Decrense) in Trade Payables [1,323.74) 50425
vi (Increase) Deerease n Inventorics G441.12 (15,032.76)
vii {Increase) Deceease i Receivables {1, 960.60) (294.69)
viti {Increase) Decrease m Short teem Loans & Advances (243.95) (5,149,300
x (Increase) Decrease in Other non-curment assets 2292 [246.7H)
Cash generated from Operations (1,369.02) (3,879.53)
i Income Tax Paid - (13265
Met Cash from Operating Activitics (A) {5,994.35) (2833.22)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
1 Purchase of Propeoy, Plant and Equipment {0,000 (685 40)
it (Increase)/Deerease in capital WP - 875
it (Increage) Decrcase in Long term Loans & Advances (957.27) [442.68)
v Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1236 252
v Sale of lnvestments ol .
vi Purchase of Investmént -
vil Inrerest & Dhvadend Received 21 8243
Met Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (522.97) (1,034.38)
Cash Flow from Financing Activitics
i Interest Paid {1,803.11) (548.14)
il Increase (Iecrease] in Borrowings 3,055.21 454558
i Inceease (Decrease) in Other long term habalitics 1.921.25 {0-16)
Met Cash used in Financing Activitics {C) 317336 3,997.29
Met increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {3,343.96) 129.68
Cash & Cash Equivalent as at beginning of the year 3,586.96 345728
[Cash & Cash Equivalent as at end of the year 24301 3,586.96
“ote 1o the Cash Flow Statement: Cash and Cash Equivalenis include
Cash and Bank Balances
Corporate information & statement of accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements.
As per our audit report of even date.
For B C Jain & Associates For DS Kulkarni Devlopers Limited
Chartered Accountants (A company under Comqoraic Insul ¢ Welabdnoir-Process
Firm ntw“ Moz W100156 by NCLT Crederated 26th Sgp |
S \11(\'/-/\
Juisher Mr. Manoj Agarwal
Partner Registranon no. TBBI/TPA-001/TP-RBit
Membership No. 15080 {The affairs, business and property of TR Mol
Limited are being managed by the Resolulion professional]
who act as agent of the Company oaly withour any personal]
habalery.)
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 2lst Sepe 2020 Diate: st Sepr 2020

UDIT N/~ 202/5080APRAPAARZEGES



D. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lud.
CIN LAS20IPN1991PLCO63340

Motes o the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended

31-Mar-18

33 HRelated party disclosures

Subsidianes

Step-down subsidiaries
Key management personnel
Relanves of key management personnel

management personnel or ther selatives

A Mames of related parties where control exists and refated

Enterpriscs owned or significantly mfluenced- by key

e I - T R PR L O R

4
41

pasty relationshap

DSK Developers Comporton
DEK Infra Pyve Lid

DSK Southern Projects Pyt Lad
DSK. Woods LLC

Mr. I, 8 Kulkami

Mrs Hemanti D Kulkarnm

Mr. Amit Deepak Kulkarm

Mrs. Ashwini Sanjay Deshpande
Mis, Bhagrashees Amit Kulkarm:
Mr. Makarand 5. Kulkarm

M. Tanwva § Kolkami

Mr. Shirsh Kulkarm

Managing Durccror

Ambiance Ventures Estates & Developments Pee Lul

At & Company
Ascent Promoters & Developers Pyr Lod,

Chandradecp Promoters & Developers Pyt Lid.

3. 5. Kulkarmi Constructions Pve. Led
DA Kulkarm & Associaies

.8 Kulkarm & Brothers

DS Kulkarn & Company

D5 Kulkarm & Sons

DSK 8 Asso

DSK & Co.

DSK Auto Pve. Ltd

DEK Constructions

D5K & Sons

DSK Dhgital Technologies Pet. Lad.
DSK Ententanmient LLC

D5k Global Education and Research Lud.
DSK Infotech Pyt Leds

DEK Milkotronics Pyr. Led.

[0SR Motors Pyt Lid.

DSK Motorrecks Pt Lid.

5K Motowheels vt Led.

DSK Prabhu Granite LLP

DSK Sabes & Services

DEK: Shivageans Football Club Pre Led.
DEK Smdios Pet Lad.

DEK Word Education Counel

DEK Worldman Projects Lad
Fairyland Promoters & Developers Pt Lud.
Forever Solar Progects Pye. Led.
Gharkul

Greenpgold Farms & Forests Pee. Led
Growrich Agroforestry Pre Lud,
Hexagon Capital Advisors Pee. Lid,
Holyland Agroforcatry Py L.

Rasa Group

Sapphire Promoters & Developers Pre. Lid
Sha Saptashrung O Mills Pyx. L.
Tabisman Heospitality Services vt Led
Telesmell

Trcone Infracon Lud.




D. 5. Kulkamni Developers Lud.
CIN L45201PN1991PLCO63340

Motes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31-Mar-18
B Related pasty transactions 2017-18 2016-17
BALANCE SHEET ITEMS: Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
1 Equiry Contribution
Mrs. H. D, Kulkarm 490,59 49,59
Mr. 12, 5 Kulkarm 60005 GO, 05
Mr. Shirish Kuolkarm: 152.00 15200
Sub wtal L.242.64 1,242.64
2 Loans and Advances payahle
2 5 Kulkami & Assooates 13,692.90 1401670
[ & Kulkarm & Company 37,387. 79 38 8040 46
D5 Kulkarmi Construchons Pye Lid 14.43 14.43
DSK Infra Pyt Led 145.23% 145.22
DEK Worddman Projects Lid 103.39 11511
DSE Ghobal Education and Research Led 120.26 123,05
3K Global Education & Research- Anandghan Loan 437.16 437,16
Mrz. H. D Kulkami 200 24 693,74
Mr. Shiresh Kulkarm 48,94 -
Me. I 5, Kulkarm 26,34 .
Ambaance Ventures Estates & Developments Pve Lid. GRL1T G635
Sub otal 53,027.85 55,021.49
3 Deposits payable
D 5 Kulkami & Assocates 050 0,50
35K Global Educason and Rescacch Lud, 25.00 25.00
Mr. I & Kulkarm 1.77 1.00
Sub total 21.27 26,50
4 Trade pavable
DEK Motors Per. Lad 56.43 56.01
Trcone Infracon Lad 80.20 80.20
DK Global Education and Research Lid 11275 108.35
Taksman Hospitality Pve. Ltd 248 248
Mr Shirish  Kulkarn: 223.98 223.98
Mz 1D Kulkarms 35.03 40.28
Telesmell 003 Al
3. § Kulkarni & Assocrates 0.22 022
Sub total 51013 520,62
5 Investments at the year end
DSK Developers Comporation 509.50 509.50
Less: Provision for permanent dimamition in value (540r9.501) (509.50)
DSK Global Educatson and Research Lid. 7332 7332
5K Southern Projects Pee Lod 1,400, 23 1,400.24
Less: Provision for permanent dimunason m value (1,400.23) {1,4000.24)
D5K Infea Pyt Lad 200 20600
271332 273,32

Sub total
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D. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lud.
CIN L45201PNI99IPLC0G3340

Motes 1o the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the vear ended 31-Mar-18
6 Advances receivable
Tricone Infracon Lid. 46928 469.28
DSK Global Education and Research Led. 659,70 50529
Mr. Shinsh Kuolkarm 22627 113.44
Mrs. H 1Y Kulkami = 4
Sub wotal 1,355.19 1,178.14
7 Loans receivable
DEK Developers Corporation 6,576 4% 6,197.05
DSK Southem Projects Pvt Led 506262 4 89581
[ese: Provision for doubtful debs (4,713.84) (4.7 15.600
Sub wial 6,925.26 5,379.26
& Deposits receivable
[ 5 Kulkarm & Company 25.00 25.00
Mr Shinsh D Kulkaom 14000 14.00
Mire. H 1 Kulkarni 1.50 150
D 5 Kulkarm & Associates 25.00 25.00
D8k Global Edveation & Fesearch Lud 11.0% 1103
Sub wal T6.53 76.53
9 Trade receivable
BSK Motowheels Pve Led 155.84 1.66
DSK Shivagans Football Club Pyt Led 038 (.38
Sub wial 156.21 2.4
10 Guarantees given
5K Global Education and Research Lod 10,000,060 10,000 000
Sub toial 10,000.00 10, 000,00
TOTAL OF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 73,595.41 74,720.54
PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS
1 Reimbursement of expenses
DEK Worldman Progects Lud 11.72 2344
[2 5 Kulkarn: & Company 50L91 #i.54
[ 5 Kulkarmi & Associates 15.18 27.06
Me. D, 8 Kullkami 1:35 135
Me Shinsh Kulkarn: - 1111
Sub wial 79.16 147.50
2 Interest Income
DSK Developens Corporation 38319 18118
DSK Southemn Projects Per Lid 251.99 26823
Sub ol 635.18 64941
3 Rent Income
DEK Global Education and Research Liad. A5.30 10000
D 5 Kulkarni & Assocates 1.467 1.82
8697 101.82

Sub ol
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D. 5. Kulkami Developers Ltd.

CIN L45201PMN 1991 PLCOG3340
Motes 1o the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31-Mar-18
4 Commission Income
DSK Global Education and Research Lud 10048
DSK Worldman Projects Lid - 2749
13 5 Kulkarm & Company . 404.73
[3 5 Kulkarm & Assocutes . 135.52
Ambdance Ventures Fatates & Developments Per. Led. . 20734
Sub 1oeal - 965.55
5 Services availed
DEK Global Education and Research Lid . 3206
DEK Motors Pve. Led 042 10.31
Telesmell n16G 0.21
Sub wotal 0.58 42,58
6 Remuneration
M. 1.5 Kulkaou 1.35
M Shinsh [ Kulkarm - {160
Mrs. H D Kulkarm = 18.01
Suby ol - 19,96
7 Interest expense
Ambiance Ventures Fstares & Developments Prt. Lod 17.38 70.50
D 5 Kulkarm & Associates : 1.689.86
12 5 Kulkarm & Company - 4434100
Sub total 17.38 6,194.47
8 Rent expense
[ § Kulkarm & Associates - 5321
[ & Kulkarm & Company - 56.25
Mr Shinsh [ Kullarm . 12163
Mz H D Kulkarm - 2235
DEK Global Education and Research Led - 65415
Sub toral - 38.49
9 Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
DS Shivajians Football Club Pyt Led . 0.38
Sub total . 0.38
TOTAL OF PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS 819.27 8,440.16
Grand Tozal 74,414.68 83,160.70

39 Disclosure for assets taken on lease as per Ind AS 17:
The Company has entered into operating lease armngements for office space at Pune and Mumba, There are no funire minmsn lease
payments under non-canceliable operating leases s all the lease arrmgements are cancellable at the option of lessee. Details of such

leases are a3 follows:

Sr. Landlord Premises From To Rent p.a (Rs.)
1 Mre H D Kulkarni Pune | M Rd. Office 01-8ep-15 31-Aug-20 - 18,52,500
2 Mr. D. Argade Panl Argade Hights, Pune 11-fan-15 10-Jan-20 8,000,000 19,20,000
3 DSKGER L DSK Dream City, Pune 01-Chee-17 30-Sep-18 . 20,32.236
4 DSK GER Lud. DSK Diream City, Pune 01-Ohee-17 30-Sep-18 - 25,335,680
5 Lineoln Developers Pt Ld Delhi Office 01-Feb-16 i1-Jan-19 . 99,757
Total £,00,000 84,38,153

“The above details are prepared as per the books maintained due to lack of lease agreements
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D. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lid.
CIN LAS20PN199IPLCIG63 340
Motes 1o the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the vear ended 31-Mar-18

40

41

Disclosure for assets given on lease as per Ind AS IT:

The company has given its lind on opersting lease to its erstwhile subsidiary, DSK Global Education & Research Lid for 3 peniod of 99

years w.e.f 15t July 2008

Particulars of asset Gross Blockas  Net Blockas Gross Block as  Ner Block as
at 31-03-2018  ar 31-03-2018  ar31-03-2007  av 31-03-2007

Land (Rs. in Lacs) 259203 250203 259203 259203
Future minimum lease payments recervable in respect of non-cancellable leases 2017-18 2016-17
Rs. in Lacs Rs in Lacs
Due within one year from the Balance Sheet date 85.30 85.30
Due in the period between one year and five years 34120 341.20
Due after five years T.421.10 T421.10
Tuotal 7.847.60 7,847.60

The sbove amounts of lease dues for 1 year from the Balance sheet date' is kept to be same as that of last year due to lick of dat.

The comgiany has given its land (Bavdhan) on operating lease to Nikhil Kulkamni and Company for a period of 02 years w.ef 15t Oct
2016

Paroculars of asset Gross Block as  Net Blockas Gross Block as  Met Block as
at 30-03-2018  ar 31-03-2008  ar 31-03-2017  ar 31-03-2017
Land (Rs. in Lacs) 288 288 288 2.88
Future minimumn lease payments recevable m respect of non-cancellable leases 2017-18 2016-17
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Anmual Rent o6l Gt

Due in the period between ong year and five years
Due after five years

Total .60 6,60
The Company has sub-leased part of its leased Mumbai Office as follows:
2017-18 2016-17
Sub-lcasce Premisess  Foom To Rent (Rs.) p.a
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
D S Kulkarns & Associates Mumbai Office (Part) 0M-Apr-1T 31-Mar-18 1.67 1.58

The company has given its land (Pursung) on operating leass to Nikhal Kulkarni and Company for a period of 3 year w.ef 15t Apnl
2016

2017-18 2016-17
Lessee Premiscs From To Rent Rs.p.a
Rz, in Lacs Rz, in Lacs
Mikhil Kulkaeni & Company Fursungs ~ 01-Apr-13 3-Mar-17 6.00 600
Gross Blockas Netblock as  Gross Block as Net block as at
Particulars of asset At 31-03-2018 ar 31-03-2018 at 31-03-2017  31-03-2017
Land (Rs. n La.u::lJ 130,00 134000 130.00 1 300

The Company has not so far entered into any Anancial lease.

Additonal Information 2017-18 2017-18 2016-17 2016-17

A Value of mpors caleulared on CLF bass by the
company during the Anancl year in respect of —

Constructnion matersls - 495.74
B Expenditure in foreym curmency dunng the financial
year on account of

Foregh Travel 308 15.64

Exhabitions - 951

Professional and consultanon fees - 108 15.95 61.10
C Earmngs in foreign exchange

Foreigh Travel refund 2m .

Interest from subswdiary 38319 381.18
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. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lud.
CIN LAS20PNISOIPLCOG3340
MNotes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31-Mar-18

42 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees & Investmenis pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34 read
with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requircments) Regulations 2015;

Maximum outstanding during

Outstanding as at eyt

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Mame of Entity Rs. in Lacs R, in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Loans to subsidiaries for business purpose
DSK Developers Comporation 6,576,479 6,197.05 6,376.49 6,197.05
DEK Southern Projects Pe. Lid, 506262 4,895.81 5,147.80 4,895.81
sub-total 11,639.10 11,092,865 11,724.28 11,002 86
Corporate Guarantees for other companics against bank loan
DSK Global Educanon & Research Led. 10,000.00 10,0060 00 10,000.00 10,000, 00
Investments in subsidiaries for business purpose
DSK Bevedopers Comporation S50 509.50 509,50 50,50
DSKE Infra Pve Led 200000 200,00 200143 200000
[DSK Southemn Projects Pve Led. 1,400.23 1,400.23 1, 400,23 1 A00.23
suh-total 2,109.73 2,100.73 2,100.73 2,100.73
Investments in former subsidiary
DEK Global Education & Research Lid 7332 73.32 7332 8292
lovestment by DSK Developers Corporation (US
subsidiary) in its own subsidiary DSK Woods LLC

1,974.45 1,974.45 1974.45 1,974.45

43 Additional information related 1o delayed payment by the Company to Micro / Small Enterprises as per Section 22 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006): This disclosure is voluntary since Ind|
AS compliant Schedule I11 is silent about this disclosure.

5r Mo Paruculars 3l-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rs, in Lacs Rs. io Lacs

(i} The prncipal ameunt remaining unpaid to any supplier {as defined i 52(n) of MSMED Ac, il Wil
200) as at the end of the sccounting year

{15} The mterest due on the prncipal amount eemaining unpaid to any such supplier as at the end il il
of the sccounting year

(i) The amounts of payments made to such supphier beyond the appowmnted day dunng the Bl il
BCCOUNLImE year

{i¥) The amount of interist paid by the company in terms of § 16 'of MSMED Act, 2006, dusing il Ml
the sccountng year

{v) The smount of interest duc and payable for the penod of delay in making payruent without Nl Nl
adding the interest specified under MEMED Act, 2006.

(%) ‘The amount of interest accrsed and remaining unpaid at the end of the dccounting year il Ml

{vii} The amount of Further interest due and payable even i the succeeding years until such a day N il

when the interest dues are actually pad to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
s a deductible expenditure s 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

44 Investments in subsidiaries: [n the opinion of the management, nio loss is expeeted to anse n sespect of myvestments m subsidisnc|
for which an additional provisaon i required
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D. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lud.
CIN LAS20IPNIS9PLCOG3340

Motes 1o the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the vear ended 31-Mar-18
45 Amounis due to Investor Education & Protection Fund: As at the balance sheet date, there are amounts due and oustandmg to

this Find pertaning to 1Y 2009-10,

As per our audst report of even date.
For B C Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: Wi0015a6

Membership No. 115080

Place: Mumibai
Drare: 21st Sept 2020

#6 The Company has not complied with the provisions of Sec 185 and 186 of the Comparues Act, 2013

For DS Kulkarni Devlopers Limited
(A company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process by NCL
Order dated 26th September, 2019) -

Mr. Manoj Agarwal
Regutraton no. [BBTTPA-001 /TP-POOT 14
{The affairs, business and property of D8 Kul ;
are bemng managed by the Resolution professional who act as agent of]
the Company only wathout any personal labiity.)

Place: Mumbai
Drate: 21st Sept 2020
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